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CORPORATE INFORMATION

MODARABA COMPANY
AT-ZAWIN MODARABA MANAGEMENT (PRIVATE) LIMITED

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

MAlr. Man Sheikh Arshad Faroog Chairman

Mr. Basheer Ahmed Chowdry Chief Execotive
*Mr Sved Shahnawsz Ahmed Rize Director

Mlr. Syed Etrat Huzzam Brwi Director

Alr AMohsmmad Yasin Durector

Mir. Mohammad Sami Ullab Director

Dz Mrs. Namoos Baguoaz Diirector

*Zubsegquent to the year end, the Board lost one of its prominent member, Alr Shahnawaz A Rizvi who expired
on 9th Zeptember, 2025,

MANAGEMENT
Mr. Basheer Ahmed Chowdey Chief Execotive
Mls. Hamids Ageel Chief Operating Officer/ Company Secretary

AUDIT COMMITTEE

MAlr. Syed Etrat Huszam Bizw Chairmarn

Mlr. Mian Sheikh Arshad Faroog MMember

M. AMuhammad Sams Ullab Alember

A Mohammad Vasin MAMember

Ms. Hamids Ageel Secretary to the commattes
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Mr AMohammad Yazm Chairman

Alr. Syed Etrat Huszam Rizvm Mlember

Dir. Mr=. Namoos Baquoar MAMember

Mr. Basheer Ahmed Chowdey Aember

M=, Hamida Ageel Secretary to the commuttes
INTERMNAL AUDITORS

UHY Hassan Nzeem & Cao.

Chartered Accountants

AUDITORS OF THE MODAERABA
Grant Thomton Angom Rahman
Chartered Accountants

BANEER
Meezan Bank Limited

LEGAL ADVISORS
Hol=cott International
2B Duogran: Law Assoucates

REGISTERED OFFICE /PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
104-106, Kaszsam Court, BC-9, Block-5, Chifton, Karachi-T3800
Telephone: 021-35876651, 35876652, 35873373, 35873369, 35867102
Fax: 021-353870408 Web: trustmodaraba com

Email: info(@trestnodaraba com

REGIONAL OFFICE
320, 3¢d Floos, Garden Heights, 8-Aibak Block, New Garden Tows, Lahore
Telephosna: 042-55941957-8 Fax: 042 33866515

REGISTRARS
Hameed Majeed Associates (Povate) Limated
1* Floor, HML House, 7-Bank Square, Lahoze Telephone: 042- 572350812 Fax- 042-37338817
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MISSION STATEMENT

Trust Modaraba aims to evolve and practice exemplary standards of integrity and proficiency by
achieving balanced growth, building quality investment portfolio, maintaining high standards of
efficiency and providing good return to its certificate holders. Trust Modaraba shall endeavor to
maintain a comprehensive edge in the industry and contribute effectively in promotion of Islamic
Fmancial Regime. It shall adopt a management culture based on participation. motivation and

accountability to achieve professional and personal excellence and growth of human resource.

Trust Modaraba shall achieve a balanced texture of being a prudent and progressive organization
with 2 sound image in the market place.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL REVIEW MEETING

Notice 15 hereby given that the Annual Review Meeting of Trust Modaraba to review the
petformance of the Modaraba for the year ended June 30, 2025, will be held on Wednesday,
October 22, 2025 at 09:30 am at NBFI & Modaraba Association of Pakistan, 602, Progressive
Centre, 30-A, Block-6, PECHS, Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi-75400.

The certificate transfer books of the Modaraba will remain closed from Wednesdayv, October 15,
2025, to Wednesdav, October 22, 2025 (both days inclusive).

Karachi. HAMIDA AQEEL
September 24, 2025 Company Secretary

TRUST MODARAEA Awwnal Report 2023 04



REVIEW REPORT BY THE CHAIRMAN

It 15 a pleasure to present a review of the vear ended on 30th June, 2025 highlghting the

petformance of the Modaraba and the role of the Board of Directors in all strategic matters for
the benefit of all the stakeholders.

Performance of the Modaraba for the vear 2024-25 remained successftul even under the
challenging circumstances particularly emanating from continuous decline in policy benchmark
rates since June, 2024. The resilience shown to overcome these challenges and achieve satisfactory

results demonstrate inherent strength of the organization.

The Board of Directors comprises of highly qualified professionals having diverse experience of
mdustry and financal sector.

It 1s wnth profound sadness and heavy heart that I report the passing of our dear Board member
Mr. Shahnawaz Rizvi on 10th September, 2025, He was a valued and respected member of our
Board and contrbuted significantly to the growth of the orgamzation. His insightful perspective
and unwavering support will be deeply mussed by all of us on the Board and within the
orgamization as well Our thoughts and pravers are for lum and his famuly.

The Board plaved an effective role in all the strategic matters including oversight in relation to
recently introduced environmental, social and governance matters. The Board of Directors
comprised of highly qualified professionals having rich expernience of industry and financial sector.
The Directors through the Board and its Committees fully participated in the meetings and
provided their valuable input in the decision making process of the Board and 1ts Commuttees.

The Board 15 fully cogmizant of the evolving regulatory landscape and shall endeavour to attain

highest level of compliance.
24th September, 2025 Mian Sheikh Arshad Farooqg

CHAIRMAN
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors of Al-Zamin Modaraba Management (Private) Limited, the management
company of Trust Modaraba 1s pleased to present to the certificate holders, the Directors’ Report together
with the annual audited financial statements of the Modaraba for the year ended on 30th June, 2025

ECONOMIC REVIEW

After enduring a series of prolonged and unprecedented shocks, Pakistan’s economy showed encouraging
signs of recovery in the FY 2024-25 with GDP expanding by 2.7%. Decisive measures to establish key
macro economic fundamentals, stabilize exchange rate and curb inflation proved instrumental in fscal
consolidation and building momentum for long term sustainable growth.

Inflation declined sharply and was reported at 10.73%% down from 27% in the preceding year. As a
consequence, State Bank launched 2 monetary easing cvcle, reducing the policy rate by 1,100 basis points
during the vear. This reduction helped lower debt servicing obligations, boost economic activity thus
creating a positive impact on the economic revival. Supported by improved macro economuc activity and
a favourable external environment the countrv manaped to maintain growth across all major sectors,
albeit unevenly.

The Pakistan Stock Exchange sustained its bullish trend i the FY25 with the index moving up to over
125,000 points making it one of the world’s top performing equity markets once again The increase is
attributed to strong corporate earmings, decling in policy rates and inflation, successful first review of
IMFE-EFF program, all of which bolstered investor's confidence. Credit ratings saw noticeable upgrade
with Fitch Ratings enhancing credit ratings to B- (B minus) with a “Stable’ outlook.

Having achieved a positive turnaround in economic fundamentals, kev challenge for the country remains
transforming these gains into sustainable growth and solid fiscal discipline. Pakistan will need to
implement well calibrated reforms as outhned i its five vears” economic blue pont, whilst navigating
elevated nsks including those associated with an uncertain geo-economic environment, rising global trade
tariffs, heavy exposure to climate change and high domestic and external financing needs.

PERFOEMANCE REVIEW:

It i3 encouraging to report that the financial year 2024-23, in line with the previous vear concluded on a
positive note witnessing satisfactory operating performance based on zound business portfolio and
enhanced operating efficiencies. Challenges to the profitabality in view of sharp reduction in benchmark
policy rates by almost 11% dunng the year were well responded by carefully designed busmess plan to
ensure optimum returns on investments.

A snapshot of comparative kev operating data 15 noted hereunder.
(Amount in Rupees)

:FINANCIALYEA.R | 2024-25 | 2032

| Total Income 72575660 | 61,904,581
| Profit before Mt Fee & Tax 26,863,543 | 29,561,017
| Management Fee 268635 | 2956102
| Tax | 490865 | 4841691
| Profitafter tax | 18390098 | 20854519
EPC 0.62 071
Total Equity 348755947 | 345265849
Total Assets 401,963,224 414,351,428
'ROE 527% | 6.04%
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It 13 a pleasure to report that total income from all busmess segments registered an increase of 17% over
the previous vear increasing from Rs.61.9 nullion to Rs.72.6 million. Despite sharp dechine in policy rates,
this growth in profits is also attributed to the management’s policy of capping of minimum lending rates
to hedge against the dechning policy rates. In line with the busmess plan approved for the vear,
Diminishing Musharakah mode of financing constituted major segment contributing 70% to the revenue.
Opportunities for trading in the stock market were fully capitalized as result of which income of Bs.5.4
million was realized by way of capital gain and dmidends. Other meome of Rs.3.5 milkon was also
achieved which mnteralia, comprsed of gain on sale of Tjarah assets, documentation charges and profit on
bank deposits. Financing portfolio of vour Modaraba remained well diversified across various sectors
concentrating mamnly on vehicle financing by way of Diminishing Musharakah mode as a result of which
risk profile of the Modaraba improved considerably, requiring mimimum provision (Rs.124.447) to be
recorded for doubtful receivables. Improvement in stock market index appreciated market value of the
equity portfolio by Rs.1.9 milhon as at 30th June, 2023, which was reflected as unreahzed gain in the profit
& loss account. Operating expenses (excluding deprecation) increased by 18% due to increase in costs
across the board and sharing of office rent with the management company. After accounting for all the
expenses and provisions, your Modaraba aclieved pre-tax profit of Fs.26.9 million for the vear under
consideration as against Rs 295 mullhion of the previous vear. Profit after tax stood at Rs. 1840 mullion
translating into EPC of Rs.0.62.

Disbursement during the year under consideration amounted to Rs. 215 million after thorough due
diligence of the chients. Focus mainly remained on vehicle financing, a niche segment underserved by the
banks due to repulatory cap on the mamimum financing amounts. Financing exposure remained diversified
across varions sectors to chients having satisfactory credit history and financial standing. SME ezposure
remained selective. Disbursements accounted for 55% to individuals, followed by 27% to corporate sector
and 18% to SMEs. Due to improvement in the nsk profile of the financing portfolio, infection ratio
improved significantly and no new client was added in the WPL portfolio.

Balance sheet footing stood at Rs.402 million with an equity of Rs.349 million as at 30th June, 2025. The
balance sheet reflects mimimal leverage, with the equity base strengthening supported by improved
profitability.

DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors, after careful consideration of the relevant circumstances and future business
requirements, has decided to pass over the dividend for the vear under review.

CREDIT RATING:

It is a pleasure to report that VIS Credit Rating Company has re-affirmed entity ratings of Trust Modaraba
at BEB+/A-2. Outlook on the assipned ratings is “Stable’. Long term ratings of EBB+ reflect adequate
credit quality, protection factors are reasonable and sufficient. Short tenm rating of A-2 sigmfies sound
entity fundamentals and good certainty of timely pavments.

The ratings reflect debt free structure of Trust Modaraba, adequate Lquidity profile and improved

profitability metrics particularly from its musharakah financing portfolo. It 13 also acknowledged that the
Modaraba’s capitalization remaimns strong with an increasing equity base funded through retained earmings.

FUTURE OUTLOOK:

Though Pakistan’s economy i3 stabilizing, the challenges for sustained growth still persist in the medium
term In line with the downward trend of inflation, the policy rates may further be slashed by the
govemnment reducing returns on the financng portfolio.

Consistent policy implementation 1s thus crucial for building resihence and enabling sustained growth. The
current floods have wreaked havoc and will have mults dimensional impact over the economy and
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businesses. The period zhead has vet to experience after shocks of the flood posing challenges for the
financial sector too.

Keeping in view the emerging financial and economic landscape, vour Modaraba will keep its focus on the
existing business model building upon internal efficiencies and professional excellence. Your management
will continue to focus on quality improvements, productivity & cost control to improve competitiveness
and enhanced profitability.

GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK:

Trust Modaraba has put in place sound governance framework which ensures corporate diversity,
strategic direction, clear objectives, well defined policies and sound internal control systems.

Trust Modaraba has a formal process of evaluation of the performance of the Board of Directors and its
committees. The evaluation iz carried out once a yvear To undertake the evaluation process,
comprehensive proformas are circulated to the members for their input. The responses are compiled and
results shared in the Board meeting for collective feedback of the members on the areas requiring further
IMpIovements.

The Board of Directors meets at least once in every quarter to review the financial performance of the
Modaraba and delberate on sigmficant operational and strategic matters in line with the goals and
objectives set for the organization.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD AND MEETINGS:

The Board of Directors consists of qualified individuals possessing knowledge, experience, and skills in
various professions which adds diversity to the Board and plays a crucial role in deciding effective
corporate policy and strategic direction.

Subsequent to the vear end, there has been a change in the composition of the Board of Directors as the
Board lost one of its prominent member, Ar. Shahnawaz Rizvi who left for eternal abode on 9th
September, 2024, after prolonged illness. Mav Allah rest his soul in peace!

Being a well qualified and highly expenenced professional, Mr. Shahnawaz Rizvi contributed significantly
to the growth of the Modaraba and lus professional guidance in the board matters will be profoundly
missed.

53ad demise of Mr Rizvi has created a casual vacancy in the board which will be filled in as per the
regulatory requirements.

Composition of the current Board of Directors, as at reporting date 15 thus, as under:

NAME CATEGORY
Mr. Mhan Sheikh Arshad Farooq (Chairman) Non Ezecutive Director
Mr. Basheer A Chowdry (CEQ) Executive Director
Mr. Etrat Hussam Rizvi Independent Director
Mr. Muhammad Sami Ullah Independent Director
Mr. Mohammad Yasin Independent Director
Ms. Dr. Namoos Bagar Non Exzecutive

Female Director
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Four meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the vear and the attendance of each director
was as under:

NAME MEETINGS ATTENDED
Mr. Mian Sheikh Arshad Farooq (Chairman) Four

Mzt Basheer A Chowdry (CEQ) Four

Ms. Dr. Namoos Bagar Four

My Etrat Hussain Bizvi Four

AMr. Moharmmad Yasin Four

Mre. Muhammad Sami Ullah Four

My 5. Shahnawaz Bizvi Nl

All the Diirectors duly comply with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance pertaining to
the Director's Certification.

As per the Board's Remuneration Policy, Chairman, non -executive directors and independent directors
are entitled onlv for the fee for attending the meetings which is paid by the Management Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE & INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM:
The Management of vour Modaraba believes in pood corporate governance implemented through a

well-defined system of check and balances. The Board of Directors have established a sound svstem of
internal controls which is effectively implemented at all levels within the Modaraba

The Board has constituted Audit Committee in compliance of the requirements of the Code of Corporate
overnance which comprised of four (4) members mncluding the Chairman of the Committee who is an
independent director. Four meetings of the Audit Committee were held dunng the vear which were
attended by the members as follows:

NAME MEETINGS ATTENDED
Mr. Etrat Hussain Rizvi (Chairman) Four

Mr Arshad Faroog (hMember) Three

Mr. AMuhammad Samiullah (hdember) Four

Mr. Muhammad Yasin (Member) Four

The Audit Comumittee meets once in every quarter to review annual and interim financial statements of the
Modaraba prior to their approval by the Board. The Audit Commitiee also focuses on compliance with
applicable accounting standards, any change i the accounting policies and practices, all related party
transactions and also significant adjustments resulting from audit

Internal Audit functions are entrusted to an independent firm of Chartered Accountants. Internal audit
reports and comphance matrix are presented by the internal auditors to the Audit Compmittes on a
quarterly basis according to annual audit plan approved by the Commuttee. A full time sentor staff member
of the hodaraba is also designated as Head of Internal Audit to coordinate between internal audit firm
and the Board.

HUMAN RESQURCE & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:
The Board has constituted Human Resource and Remuneration Committee to deliberate on the kev issues
of human resource management policies. The Committee comprises of the following members:

* Mr Muhammad Yasin Chairman » Mr. Basheer A. Chowdry Member
» Mr Etrat Hussain Rizvi MMember » Mrs. Hamida Aqeel Secretary
* Mrs. Dr. Namoos Baquar Member
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One meeting of the Human Resource Committee was held dunng the year with full attendance of the
members.

ASSURANCE REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH SHARIAH REGULATIONS, 2023

In terms of shariah Governance Regulations, 2023, external Shariah Audit of Trust Modaraba’s financial
arrangements, contracts and transactions with Shariah principles was conducted by a qualified team of

external auditors compnsing of assurance practitioners and independent Shariah scholar. The report
confirms that the Modaraba’s financial arrangements, contracts and transactions for the year ended June,

2025 are in compliance with the Sharah principles, in all material respects.

SHARTAH ADVISOR REPORT

Well known Shariah scholar, Mr. Mufti Zubair Usmari has been appointed as Shariah advisor of Trust
Modaraba. His gudance 15 sought on operational and compliance matters as and when required to ensore
adherence to the Shariah puidelines on operational matters. The Internal Audit functions also verifies
shariah compliance of the business transactions undertaken by the Modaraba according to the prescribed
standards. Report issued by the Shanah Advisor 1s placed in the financial statements of the Modaraba,

AUDITORS:

On the recommendations of the Audit Commuttee and approval of the Board, the present auditor M/'s
Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman Chartered Accountants being elipible to act as the auditors have been
re-appointed as external auditors of Trust Modaraba for the vear 2025-26 subject to the approval of the
Registrar Modaraba.

PATTERN OF CERTIFICATE HOLDING:

Pattern of certificate holding as at 30th June, 2025 is attached. No trade in the cerfificates of the Modaraba
was carried out by the Duarectors, CEQ, CFO, Company Secretary and their spouses during the vear.

VALUE OF THE FUNDS INVESTMENT:

The Modaraba operates a contributory provident fund for all its permanent emplovees. Equal monthly
contributions are made, both by the Modaraba and employees to the fund (@10% of the basic salary.
Bazed on latest accounts of the fund, the value of its investments works out to be Rs 9,705,492 as at 50th
June, 2025,

EARNINGS PER CERTIFICATE:

Barnings per certificate of vour Modaraba worked out to Rs.0.62 for the vear ended on 30th June, 2025,
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

The Board wishes to place on record its appreciations for the support and guidance provided by the
Registrar Modaraba and Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan. The Board also acknowledges
the hard work and commitment of the ezecutives and staff members. Finally, the Board extends its
gratitude to the certificate-holders for their unwavenng support to the Modaraba.

7 QEJ@

24th September, 2023, CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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Key Operating & Financial Data for the last Six Years

(Rupees in Thousands)
2025 2024 2025 2022 2021 2020

Balance Sheet

Total assets 40,195 414,351 388,757 413388 378810 337303
Tjara Fwmanecing 72934 146,943 190,294 190179 184039 196,778
Alorabaha financine 72,819 73,218 02,182 130,179 132768  1181e7
Diminishing Musharaka /Ausharaka fnancme 228,534 188,061 93,700 28,168 27 683 32 362
Aszets own use 25101 23,897 16,346 15,794 13,126 11971
Cuzrent Aszets 102,302 176,255 173,100 22173 223814 220,393
Current Liahihties 33,749 41,569 26,913 44745 33,092 26,024
Total Liahikities 53,207 72,958 68,752 94 338 63,199 30,638
Paid-up Capatal 208,000 208,000 208,000 295000 295000 298,000
Reserves 50,756 47,266 28,506 28,380 17,614 B.B63
Net Equiy 348,756 341,394 320,005 321051 5315612 306,363
Income Statement

Income 74,365 68,470 38,433 38,316 43,463 35713
Operanng expenses 47,502 358,018 37,284 43476 30,440 30,304
Profit/(Loss) before management fee 26,864 29,561 1,149 14 540 9,017 3,209
Profit/(Loss) after taxation 13,390 20,855 (73) 11,365 6,606 1,732
Earmng/ Toss) per cartificate 0.617 0.712 - 038 0.22 0.06

1 5 TRUST MODARARA Arwnal Report 2023



Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2019,
Trust Modaraba managed by Al-Zamin Modaraba Management {Private} Limited

The Modaraba Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner;
. Total number of the directors were seven as per the following composition;
a) Male Six {6)
bY Female One (1}

2. The composition of the Board was as follows:

Type of Directors Names

Executive Mr. Basheer A, Chowdry (CECY)
Mon-Executive Mr. Shiekh Arshad Faroog (Chairman)
Non-Executive *Mr. Syed Shahnawaz Rizvi
Independent Director Mr. Etrat Hussain Rizvi

Independent Director Mr. Muhammad Yasin

Independent Director Mr. Muhammad Samiullah
FEMALE DIRECTOR

MWon-Execunve Dr. Mrs. Namoos Baquar

“Nurbrequent ta the year end, the Board fose ome of ity promipent member, Mre Shabnaway A, Rizoi who expired on S
Septenmeber, 025, A vavancy has thas been created which shall be filled in as per the vepulalory requirements.

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more thin seven companies
including this company.

4, The Company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken
disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures,

h

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall business strategy and significant policies of
the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of the particulars of the significant policies along
with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the company,

f Al the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on matters have been taken by the
Board/sharcholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and Regulatons,

7. The meetings of the Bourd were presided aver by the Chairman and in his absence by a director elected by
the Board for this purpose, The Board has m\mp]ie{.! with the requirements of the Act and the Regulations

with respect to frequency, recording and circularing minutes of the meeting of the Board.

8 The Board has a formal policy and tansparent procedures for remuneradon of direcrors in accordance with
the Act and these regulations,

9, Five directors of the Modaraba Company have already obtained directors training certification and two are
exempt from the requirements by virtae of their experience as prescibed by the listing regulations of the
Pakistan Stock Exchange.
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1.

1L

12

The Board has approved appoinmment of chief financial officer, company secrerary and head of internal audic

including their remuneration and terms and conditons of emplovment and complied with the relevant
requirements of the Regulations.

Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the
Board,

The Board has formed commirrees comprising of the members given below,
Audit Committee

Mr. Sved Etrat Hussain Rizvi Chairman
Mr, Sheikh Arshad Farcog Member
Mr. Mubammad Sami Ullsh Member
Me. Mubammad Yasin Member
HR and Remuneration Committee

Mr. Mubhammad Yasin Chairman
Mr. Syed Etrat Hussain Rizvi Member
Dir. Mrs, Mamoos Baguar Member
Mr. Basheer A, Chowdry Member

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the

L faat troes for q_'umplinﬂ.:;-c.

The frequency of mectings of the committees were as per the following:

Audit Committee Quarterly
HR & Remuneration Committee Annually

. The Board has outsourced internal audit functon to a firm of Chartered Accountants who are considered

quahfied and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the
company, A senior seaff member of the Maodaraba is alse desipnated as head of internal aodit to coordinate
berween internal auditor and the Board.

. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under

the Quality Conrrol Review program of the Insdwee of Charrered Accountants of Pakistan and repistered
with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all the parmers of the firm involved in the audie are
not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the Chief Fxecutive and
chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or direeror of the company.

. The staturory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other

services except mn accordance with the Act and regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they have
observed IFAC puidelines in this regard,

B, The requirements introduced by the SECP through a recent notificaton dated 120 June, 2024, reparding

19,

Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) matters shall be implemented in due course,

We confirm thar all the requirements of regulations 3,678, 27,3233 and 36 of the Regulations have been
duly complied wich.

20, Explanation for non-complianee of non-mandatory requirements other than the regulatons noted above;
MNon Mandarory Requirements Begulation | Explanation
1
Formal policy on ESGr marters related o health | 10{d-xiv At the moment Board provides an oversight
and  safery, sustainability, cotporate  social ont the ESG matters, This was pardcularly
responsibility and other matters of social welfare, discussed in the recent board meeting and
a formal policy would be placed in the
fortheoming board mecang,
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Compliance witch the reguiremenrs related
governance and oversight of sustainability risks
and opportunities, including DE & 1 policies,
formation of a committee

and  periodic
monitoring of sustainability relared strateges,

10(A)

The board is
requirements and at the momenr provides
these  marters.  The
requirements recently introduced by SECP
through notification dated 12th June, 2024

fully cognizant of the

an oversight  on

shall be complied with during the year.

Orientation program for the Board of Directors

The arientation session for Board 1o apprise
them on the latest developments in the role
of Board of directors shall be conducred in
the forthcoming Board meeting 1o be held
in October 2025,

Companies are encouraged to amange trainings
under Directors” training program,

19(0) & (i)

Company Secretary being the only female
executive has acquired directors training
certificanon in july 2020,

The Modaraba will continue assess the
further training needs and its suitabiliey for
the staff members in consideration with the
requirements of CCG.

Mominatdon Committee & Risk Management
Commirtee

298350

The

responsibilitics of  the

the

nomnarion

Board effectively  discharges
committee and effectively monitors and
assesses the requirements with respect to
changes the Board
committees.

The Board itself and also through its audit
committee  reviews the risks facing the
Modaraba w

any needed  on

ensure that a sound risk
management and internal conrral svstem is
put in plaice.

Posting of significant accounting policics on

company's website

key elements of Whiste Blowing Policy,
Health & Safety Policy, Code of Conduct
have been uploaded ro our websire, and the
remaining ones will be uploaded in due
COUrse.

21. We confirm thar all requirements, other than repulatons referred in clanse 20 above have been duly

complied.

Date: 24% September, 2025.

Mian Sheikh Arshad Farooq
Chairman
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Report of Sharfah Advisor

| have conducted Shariah Review of Trust Modaraba managed by Al-Zamin
Modaraba Management (Private) Limited for the year ended on 30" June, 2025, In

accordance with the Shariah rules and regulations for the Modarabas,

In my opinion:

V.

the Modaraba has introduced a mechanism which has strengthened the
Shariah compliance, and the policies adopted by the Modaraba are in line

with the Shariah principles;

The agreements entered into by the Modaraba are Shariah compliant and the
financing agreements have been executed on the formats as approved by the
Religious Board and all the related conditions have been met.

To the best of my information and according to the explanations given to
me, the business transactions undertaken by the Modaraba and all other
matters incidental thereto are in conformity with the Shariah requirements,
Islamic Financlal Accounting Stanclards as applicable in Pakistan and the
Shariah Reguiatlons for Modarabas,

No earnings have been realized by any means prohlbited by Shariah.

In my oplinion, the operations of Trust Modaraba are in conformity with the Shariah

principles for the Modarabas.

=

Signature
"LINAMMAD ZUBAIR USMANI
2 RTAH ADVISOR

Muhammad Zubair Usmani
Jamia Darul Uloom Karachi

26" August, 2025,
Karachi
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Independent Assurance Report
On Compliance with the Sharah Governance Repulations, 2023
To the Board of Directors of Trust Modaraba

L.

Introduction

We have undertaken a reasonable assurance engagement that the Secunties and Ezchange
Commuizsion of Pakistan (SECP) has required in terms of 1ts Shanah Governance Regulations, 2023
(the Repulations) — External Shariah Audit of the Trust Modaraba (collectively referred to as “the
Modaraba™) for assessing compliance of the Modaraba™ financial arrangements, contracts, and
transactions having Sharah implications with Sharnah principles for the vear ended June 30, 2025,
This engagement was conducted by a multidisciplinary team including assurance practitioners and
independent sShanah scholar.

Applicable Criteria
The criteria for the assurance engagement, against which the underlying subject matter (financial
arrangements, contracts, and transactions having Shanah implications for the vear ended June 30,
2025) is assessed, comprise of the Shariah principles and rules, as defined i the Regulations and
reproduced as under:
I.  Legal and regulatory framework administered by the Commission;
II. Shansh standards issued by the Accounting and Auditing Organization for Islamic Financial
Institutions (AAQOIFT), as notified by Commission;
III. Islamic Financial Accounting Standards, developed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Pakistan, as notified by the Comrussion;
IV. Guidance and recommendations of the Shanah adwisory comumittee, as notified by
Commission; and
V. Approvals, mlings or pronouncements of the Shariah supervisory board or the Shariah advisor
of the Islamic financial institution, in line with (i) to (iv) above.

Management’s Responsibility for Shariah Compliance

Management is responsible to ensure that the financial arrangements, contracts and transactions
having Shariah implications, entered into by the Modarabas with its customers, unitholders, other
financial mstitutions and stakeholders and related policies and procedures are, in substance and in
their legal form, in compliance with the requirements of Sharizh rules and principles. The
management iz also responsible for design, implementation and maintenance of approprate internal
control procedures with respect to such comphance and maintenance of relevant accounting
records.

Our Independence and Quality Control

We have complied with the independence and other ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics for
Chartered Accountants issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountanis of Pakistan, which 13
founded on Modarabaamental principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence and due
care, confidentiality and professional behavior.
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The firm applies International Standard on Quality Management 1 "Crally Management for Eirmr
That Perform Andits or Reviews of Fmnanctal Statements, or Otber Assurance or Related Servicer Enpagemenis”
which requires the firm to design, implement and operate a system of quality management including
policies or procedures regarding compliance with ethical requirements, professional standards and
applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

5. Owur responsibility and summary of the work performed
Owur responsibility in connection with this engagement 13 to express an opimion on compliance of
the Modarabas” financial arrangements, contracts, and transactions having Shariah implications with
Shansh prnciples, m all matenal respects, for the year ended June 30, 2025, based on the evidence
we have obtaned. We conducted our reasonable assurance engagement in accordance with
International Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000, “Assurance Engagements other than audits
orf reviews of historical financial statements’, issued by the International Auditing and Assurance
Standards Board That standard requires that we plan and perform this enpgagement to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the compliance of the Modarabas® financial arrangements,
contracts, and transactions having Shariah implications with Shariah principles 1s free from material
misstatement.
The procedures selected by us for the engagement depended on our judgement, including the
assessment of the nsks of matenial non-comphance with the Shariah principles. In making those nsk
assessments, we considered and tested the internal control relevant to the Modarabas’ compliance
with the Shanah principles in order to design procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Modarabas® internal
control We have designed and performed necessary verification procedures on various financial
arrangements, contracts and transactions having Shariah implications and related policies and
procedures based on judgmental and systematic samples with regard to the comphance of Shanah
principles.
e believe that the evidences we have obtained through performing our procedures were sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

6. Conclusion
Bazed on our reasonable assurance engagement, we report that in our opimion, the Modarabas
financial arrangements, contracts and transactions for the vear ended June 30, 2023, are in
compliance with the Shariah principles, in all matenial respects.

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman

Chartered Accountants

Karachi

Date:

MName of the Engagement Partner: Muhammad Shaukat Naseeb
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AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER OF TRUST MODARABA

2)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Trust Modaraba (the Modaraba), which comprise the
statement of financial position as at June 30, 2025, and the statement of profit and loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flow, for the vear then
cnded, and notes to the financial statements, including material accountng policy information and orther
explanarory information and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which,
to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

In our opimon and to the best of our informanon and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial positon, the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof
conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information
required by the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floaration and Control) Ordinance, 1980 (XXXI of
19801}, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Modaraba's
affairs as at June 30, 2025 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity and
its cash flows for the vear then ended,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Internatianal Standards on Auditing (15As) as applicable
in Pakistan. Owur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report, We are independent of the
Modaraba and Trust Modaraba in accordance with the Internabonal Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants “‘Code of Erthics for Professional Accountants’ as adopred by the Instmure of Charrered
Accountants of Pakistan {the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilites in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of matters

We draw attention to note 7.1.1 to the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2025, which inter
alia states the details of land which is owned but not in the possession of the Modaraba; and

We further draw attention to note 23.2 to the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2025, which
atates the details of unclaimed dividend for which management has maintained separate saving account of
Es 5.65 million against unclaimed profic distnbution of Re. 13.70 million; and
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3) We further draw attention to note 5 of the financial statements which describe that financial
statements have been restated.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters, Following are the key audit matters:

5. No.

Key Audit Matters

How the muatters were addressed in our
audit

Islamic financings and related asse

{Refer note 6, 9, 10, 14, 15, and 16 to the financial statements)

s

Islamic financings and related assets
are valued at Rs. 336,23 million which
constitutes 84% of the total assers of
the Modaraba.

As the Islamic financings and related
assets represent a significant element
of the financial statements, a
discrepancy  in  the existence or
valuadon could cause the financial
statements to be marerially misstated
which  would also  impact the
Modaraba's reported performance.,

In view of significance of financings
and related assets in relation o total
assets and the financial statements as
a whole, we have considered the
existence and valuation of financings
as a key audit matter.

1. Our audit procedures included assessing
and testing the desipn and operations of
key controls  over the recognition,
valuation and existence of financing and
related assets.

2. We performed derailed assessment of the
credit  approval  procedures of the
financings sanctioned in accordance with
Modaraba Companies and Modarabas
{Flotation and Control) Ordinance, 1980,
Modaraba Companies and Modaraba
Rules, 1981 and Modaraba Regulations,
2021 and performed credit review on
sample basis.

3. We tested controls over addition,
termination and periodic valuation of the
portfolios  and  performed  other
substantive audit procedures on the vear
end balances. Moreover, we have
reviewed documentation required i the
facilides files of the partics and verified
income from financing during the year by
petforming  recaleulation through
amortization schedules on a sample basis.

4. In additon, we have checked repayment
received from the clients on sample basis.
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5. No.

Key Audit Matters

| How the matters were addressed in our audit

Islamic financings and related assets (continued)

5.

We have assessed the ECL model used by the
management to ealculate the provision against
financings  of  the  Modaraba  for
appropriateness of the assumptions used and
the methodology applied. We also tested the

mathematical accuracy of the model.

We have evaluated management’s assessment
for classification of customer’s financing
facilities as required by Schedule-1IT of
Modaraba Regulations 2021.

We also evaluated the adequacy of the overall
disclosures in the financial statements in
respect of financings issued and related assets
in accordance with the requirements of the
applicable financial reporting  framework
NBFC Repulations and with the applicable
accounting  standards, provisions of and
directives issued under the Companies Act,
2017 and requirement of Modaraba
Companies and Modarabas (Flomton and
Control)  Ordinance, 1980, Modaraba
Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981 and
Modaraba Regulations, 2021.

[

Profit on musharakah finances
(Refer note 32 to the financial stateme

nes)

Modaraba carns income from the
musharaka finances which s its
substantial income source. During the
vear, the Modaraba has recognized
income of Rs. 50.7 million which
represents an increase of Rs 5.5
million {12%} over last year.

We  identified  income  from
musharaka finances as a key audit
matter as it is one of the key
performance  indicators  of  the
Modaraba and because of the
potential risk that income from
musharaka transactions may not be
accurately recorded, recognized in the
appropriate period, and not properly
disclosed in the financial statements,

Our audit procedures in respect of this matter

L

included the followwing:

Obtained an understanding, including the
design and implementation of internal
controls over recording and processing of
musharaka income.

Assessed  the appropriateness  of  the
Modaraba’s accounting policy for recording
of income and in line with the requirements
of applicable law, accounting and reporting
standards.
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5. No. | Key Audit Matters ] How the matters were addressed in our audit

Profit on musharakah finances (continued)

3. Matched customer contracrs with the income
schedule and  performed  recalculation on
sample basis to ensure that income is
approptiately recorded and also evaluated that
these contracts were appropriately classified
and recorded in the appropriate accounting
period.

4. On sample basis, traced the rentals received
from the underlying records issued to
contract holders and applied substantive
analytical procedures o determine any
vatiations.

PI

We also evaluated the adequacy of the overall
disclosures in the financial statements in
respect of income from musharaka finances
in accordance with the requirements of
applicable financial reporting frameworks.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other informadon comprises the informaton
included in the Annual report but dees not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

COur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obrained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

It, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement in this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors of the Modaraba for the
financial statements

Management of the Modaraba Company is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan
and the requirements of Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980
(XXX of 1980) and for such internal control as management of the Modaraba Company determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management of the Modaraba is responsible for assessing the
Madaraba’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, marters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management of the Modaraba Company
either intends to liquidate the Modaraba or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
50,

Board of Directors of the Modaraba Company are responsible for overseeing rthe Modaraba's financial
TEpPOLHNG Process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Clur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurances about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
inclades our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a materal
misstaternent when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users raken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughour the audit. We also: -

o [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud i3 higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal conrrol;

*  (brain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are approprtiate in the circumstances, but not for the putpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Modaraba's internal control;

® Fvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management of the Modaraba Company;

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the management of the Modaraba Company’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a marerial
uncertainty exists related to events or conditons that may cast significant doubt on the Modaraba’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Modaraba to cease to continue as a going concern; and

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
ina manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with the Board of Directors of the Modaraba Company regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Direetors of the Modaraba Company with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other marters that may reasonably be thoughr to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safepuards.

From the marters communicated with the Board of Directors of the Modaraba Company, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audir of the financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters, We desctibe these martters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that 4 matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to ourweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Based on our audit, we further report thar in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Modaraba Company in respect of the Modaraba as
required by the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980
(XXXI OF 1950);

b) the statement of financial positon and the statement of profic and loss, statement of other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together
with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Modaraba Companies and
Modaraba (Floatation and Control) Ordinance, 1980, (XXXI of 1980) and are in agreement with the
books of account;

¢} business conducted, investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the
vear by the Modaraba were in accordance with the objects, terms and conditions of the Modaraba;
and

d) zakat deductble at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980, (XVTII of 1980), was
deducted by the Modaraba and deposited in the Central Zakar Fund established under section 07 of
that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Muhammad
Shaukat Naseeb.

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants
Iarachi

Date: September 30, 2025

UDIN: AR20251012623P86bugH
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REVIEW REPORT TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER
OF TRUST MODARABA

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Trust
Modaraba for the vear ended June 30, 2025, in accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of

the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regularions is that of the Board of Directors of the Modaraba.
Cr responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the
Modaraba’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight
any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulatons. A review is limited primanly to inquiries
of the Modaraba's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Modaraba to comply

with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements, we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plsm the audit and dtvciup an effective andit
approach, We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control
covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the
Modaraba's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Modaraba to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation
of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related
party transactiions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent
of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendartion of the
Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement
of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Modaraba’s compliance, in all material respects, with
the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Modaraba for the year ended June
30, 2025.

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman

Chartered Accountants

karachi

Date: September 30, 2025
UDIN: CR202510126s8grwdtC9
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES ON ESG

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) has recently introduced ESG disclosure
guidelines for listed companies which revolve around factors like protecting the environment,
reduction of waste, promoting gender diversity, environmental sustainability, The scope of ESG
initiatives is very diverse and comprehensive too. On its part, Trust Modaraba has played its role in
promoting staff welfare activities and through humble donations to the health welfare organizations.
Governance standards have always remained at the forefront of the organization, Trust Modaraba has
put in place an effective framework of ethical business practices. ESG initiatives shall be further
strengthened and a long-term plan in this regard shall be worked out in due course.

GENDER PAY GAP STATEMENT

Gender Pay Gap statement under Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) Circular
10} of 2024 Following is gender pay gap calculated for the year ended June 30, 2024: 2025

a) Mean Gender Pay Gap:  -106.14%,

b} Median Gender Pay Gap: -194.12%,

¢) Any other data / details as deemed relevant:

Trust Modaraba will actively support and implement initiatives to foster gender diversity,

For and on behalf of the Board of Director

3

Chief Executive




STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2025
025 2024
(Restared)

ASSETS MNote _-—R_UIEEE
MNon-current assets
Larah zszets & J1,484,673 T4 450,750
Fixed azsets 7 24550177 22945 196
Intanghle aszet B 241,612 43 940
Musabaha Enances 0 7.156,581 6,109,160
Dimnriching amcharakah Snancing 10 144 117,878 129.420.851
Long term deposits 11 294,662 294 662
Long teom mrestments 12 - 2284 301
Dreferred taxanon - et 13 1,416,970 1,639,122
Total non-curmrent assets 209,571,553 235,096,462
Current assets
Curesnt pommon of long term mugabaha fimances 9 40,232,404 41,708,361
Correnr portion of dinvinizhine muzharakah finances 10 74,237,249 45244 359
Murabaha finances - secned 14 25,380,000 25400000
Garah renal recerrables - zecured 3 3,387,715 3,783,923
MMuzhamkah finances (zecored - consdered pood) 16 10,178,589 13,395,756
Shoet teem mvestanents 17 14,287,205 20970987
Income @x refoadable 5,280,459 3,997 069
Advances, preparments and other recesvables 15 10,291,497 11 365,245
Cazh and bank balances 13 9,066,563 10 354061
Total current asseis 192,591,671 176,254 966
Total assets 401,963,224 414 351,425
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
LIABILITIES
Mon-current habilities
Dreferred meome on muombaha 20 1,009,498 907,264
Costomers' long term secunty deposits 5 | 11,179,368 24 338 465
Leaze hahihnies apamnst nght of uze assets 2 7,269,660 6,142 142
Total non-current habihtes 19,458,226 31,333,374
Current habihaes
Coreen: portion of deferred mcome on mocabaha 20 2,043,407 2T
Cuorent portion of costomers" seconty deposits bl 5,840,750 11 660,170
Cogen: pornon of lzaze habdbisies apainet soht of use azzers 22 2,730,428 1.,799.925
Unclatmed profit distribotions 23 13,697,088 12823151
Creditors, acersed and other baknhities 24 9,325,475 12738558
Charitr payahle 25 108,503 269,552
Total current Hahalities 33,745,751 41.569.100
Total hahilities 53,207,277 72937674
NET ASSETS 348,735,947 341,583,734
REPRESENTED BY
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Cemficate captal 26 208,000,000 298,000,000
Fezerres 27 20,735,947 47 265549
Total equiry 348,735,047 345265 849
Unrealized lozs oa sevaloation of investments 23 - (5. B7T2.095)

348,735,947 341,385,734
Connnpenoes and commitments 29

The annexed notes from 1 to 34 foem an mitegral part of theze financial statements.

For Al-Zamin Modaraba Management (Private) Limited

(Mlodaraba Management Compant)
3 i, RO
—
CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024
(FRestated)
Mote 00 - Rupees-—--——-—
Income from yarah - net 30 7,409,613 13,716,710
Profit on murzhzha finsnces 31 3,884,521 4 235 B0e
Profit on musharakah finances 32 50,645,097 45219841
Duvidend income on equity investments 33 799,000 G80.670
Gain / {loss) on sale of short term investments 4,564,535 (5,197,370}
Crther income 34 3,272,294 3,268,924
72,575,660 61,904,581
Prowizion for doubtful recervables 331 (124,447) (2,891,544,
Untealized gain on revalustion of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 1 e 1,913,987 13,712,270
Los=s on disposal of assets clazzified 2= held for sale = (4,246,500
74,365,200 68,479,007
Operating expenses 36 (47,501,657) (38,917.900%
26,863,543 29,561,017
MModarsba Management Company's fee 37 (2,686,354) (2.926.102}
Services sales tax on the Management Company's remuneration 372 (402,953) (384,293
Workers' Welfare Fund 421 (475,483) (324412
Profit before taxation and levy 23,298,751 25,696,210
Levy, sumimusm tax snd final taxes 38 {103,913) [4.B41.691)
Profit before taxation 23,194,538 20,854,519
Taxation 39 (4,804,740) -
Profit for the year after taxation 18,390,098 20854 519
Earnings per certificate - basic and diluted 20 0.617 0712

The annexed notes from 1 to 54 form an integral part of theze financial statements.

For Al-Zamin Modaraba Management (Private) Limited

(Mlodaraba Management Compant)
s Q’%‘ = e
—
CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024
(Restated)
Note ————Rupees —
Profit for the year 18,390,093 20,854,519
Other comprehensive income :
Jtems that will not be reclassified to profit and loss account
- Net change in fair value of investmentz classified as fair value
through other comprehensive income - net of tax 28 3,872,095 2629 357
Jtems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit
and loss account - -
Other comprehenszive income for the vear 3,872,005 2.629.357
Total comprehensive income for the year 22,262,193 23483876

The annexzed notes from 1 to 54 form an intepral part of these financial statements.

For Al-Zamin Modaraba Management (Private) Limited

(Mlodaraba Management Compant)
< gy = |
H_,da--""_ ,‘-S"'._'_-_._._r-.
CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations
Cash generated from operations

Dhecrease | (Icredse) 488 HOH-CErFEnT @Irers
- Long term murabaha finances
- Long term muszharakah fnances

(Drecreare) | Tnveass i son-curvent Gabilities:
- Deferred income on murabaha
- Cuostomers security deposits

Purchase of jjarah assets

Long term deposits

Proceeds from dizposal of farah assets
Income tax paid / deducted

Met cash generated from / (used in) operating actvities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchaze of owned aszets

Puorchase of intangible assets

Contribution to assetz acquired on leaze

Proceeds from dizpozal of owned assets

Net proceeds from disposal of aszets classifzed az held for zzle
Disposal of investments - net

Dividends received

Met cazsh generated from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Pavment made against leaze hablity
Profit distributed to certificate holders

Met cazsh nsed in financing actvitdes

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The annexed notes from 1 to 534 form an integral part of these financial statements.

MNote

41

17

1%

2025 2024
(Restated)
-—-——-Rupees—
36,351,106 80,310,841
379,954 10,062,183
(3D,955,115) [99.619,646)
(127,850) (232,186
= 220,000
= (1,100,000
= 508.300
10,012,251 3933 537
(6,192,043) (6,249.081)
468,303 {12,166.052)
(981,626) (1,096,652
= (1,022,000
(4,940,758) (1,728,300,
2,399 240 355,760
= 4 378,300
20,267,828 13601419
799,000 660,670
17,543,654 17349397
(5,208,642) (2,199.246)
(14,031,043) {3476
(19,329 685) (2,202722)
(1,317,698) 2980623
10,384,061 TA034538
0,066,363 10,384 061

For Al-Zamin Modaraba Management (Private) Limited
(Modaraba Management Compant)

7. by,

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

‘r

f'_
oR

%

e

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

1

22

2.3

LEGAT. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Tzt Modaraba {the Modaraba) was formed in Pakistan under the Modaraba Companies and Modaraba
(Floatation and Contro]:j Oxdinance, 1980 and the rule: framed thereunder and is being managed by Al-
Za::mn Modaraba Management (Prvate) Linmted {AZNMMT. The Modaraba commenced its business
operations on November 12, 1991,

The Modaraba is perpetual, multi-purpose and multi-dimensional, engaged in the business of Murabaha,
AMusharakah and Ijarah arrangement, investment in marketable secunties, trading and other permmssible
businesses. The affairs, activities and transactions, performed by the modaraba during the year comply
with the miles and principles of Islamic Shara in the light of guidance and directives given by sharna
advizor and are in accordance with the puideline 1zsued by adwizor of the regstrar modaraba, SECP.

The principal place of business and registered office iz located at 104-106, Kassam Court, BC-2, Block-
5, Chfton, Karachi - 75600 whereas repional office iz located at 320, 3rd Floor, Garden Heights, 8-Aibak
Block, New Garden Town, Lahore.

The VIS Credit Rating Company Lirmted has maintamned long term rating of BBE+ and short term
rating of A-2 to the Modaraba. Outlock on the assigned rating is "Stable’.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

Thesze financial statements otherwize stated have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakiztan, The accounting and reporting standards applicable in
Pakistan compurdse of

- International Financial Beporting Standards (IFRS), International Accounting Standards (IAS) and
Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFASs), as are notified under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provigions of and directives izsued by securities and exchange commission of Pakistan (SECP),
requirement of Modaraba CDﬂl‘P‘Eﬂi&‘-‘ and Modarabas (Flotaion and Control) O::d_mance IQECI
Modaraba Companies and Modaraba Rules, 1981, Modaraba Regulations, 2021 and Companies Act,
2017.

Wherever the requirements of the approved accounting standards differ from the relevant laws, the
relevant laws have been followed.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are prepated and presented in Pak Rupees which iz the Modaraba's
functional and presentation cuzrency. All the fizures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee, unles:s
otherwize =tated.

Basiz of measurement

The:e financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except investments,
iwestment propecty, asset: held for zale, leaze liabilities and =mght-ofuse assets. Investments and
westment property are measured at fair value. Assets held for =ale are measured at lower of fair value
less cost to sell or carrying value. Leaze habilities and nght-of-use assets are imtially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date. Basiz of measurement
haz been discussed in related notes 4.3, 4.2 and 4.11.1 rezpectively. Thesze financial statements have been
prepared following accrual basis accounting except for cash flow information.

35 TRUET MODARABA Aenyal Report 2023



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2.4

2.5

Initial application of standards, amendments or interpretations to existing standards

The following amendments and mterpretations to published accounting and reporting standards that are
appheable to the Modaraba's financial statements covenng annual penods, beminming on or after the
following dates:

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting and reporting standards
that are effective in the current vear

There are certain amendments to published accounting and reporting standards that are mandatory for
the Modaraba's accounting period bemnning on July 1, 2024, but are conadered not to be relevant or do
not have anv siomficant :mpact on the Modaraba's operations and are, therefore, not detailed i these
financial statements.

Effective date
IAS 21 The effects of changes in foreign enchange rates Julr 1, 2025
[(Amendments)
IFRS 51 General Requrements for Dhsclosure of Sustainabslity- Julv 1, 2025
related Financial Information
IFRs 32 Chmate-related Disclozures Juaty 1, 2025

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting and reporting standards
that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Modaraba

Theze are certan other interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for the Modaraba's
accounting penods bepinning on or after July 1, 2023 but are considered not to be relevant or will not
have anv sigmficant effect on the Modaraba's operations and are, therefore, not detaled m these
financial statements.

Effective date
IFRS 7  Financal instruments : Dhisclosure January 01, 2026
IFR5 9 Financial instruments January 01, 2026
IA5 21  Lack of exchangeability January 01, 2026

Other than the aforementioned standards, interpretation and amendments, TASE has alzo 1ssued the
following standards, which have been utithzed locally m relation to the Modaraba, by the Secunties and
Exchange Comrmuszion of Pakistan (SECP) as at June 30,2025

Effective date
IFR51  Farst time adoption January 01, 2026
IFRS 18 Presentation and dizclosure in financial statements January 01, 2027
IFR5 19 Subsidies without public accountabilitv:-Disclosures January 01, 2027

The management anticipates the adoption of above standards in future being will have matenal impact

on financial statements items and presentation/ disclosures.

Corresponding figures

Prior year's fipures have been reclassified for the purpose of better presentation and companson where
conzidered necessary.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

3

31

3.3

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of financial statements 1n confornuty with approved accounting standards requures the
use of certain cotical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the
process of applving the Modaraba's accounting polictes. Hstimates and judoments are continually
evalzated and are based on histonic expernience and other factors, mcluding expectations of future events
that are beleved to be reazonable under the circumstances Rewsions to accountng estimates are
recogized in the period m which the estimate is revised and in any future period affected. In the
process of applying the Modaraba’s accounting policies, the management haz made the following
estimates and judgments wiich are sigmificant to the financial statements:

Uszeful ves, pattern of flow of economic benefits and impairment

The Modaraba’s management deternunes the useful bives and related depreciation charge, the residual
values and impairment of its fimed assets on repular basis. These are reviewed at the end of each
feporting period and if there 13 a chance in the expected pattemn of consumption of the future economme
benefits embodied i the assets and the residual values, the same 15 changed to reflect the changed
pattern. Such change 15 accounted for as change in accounting estimate m accordance with International
Accounting Standard (TAS) 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Bstimates and Errors™.

Provision against non performing financing

The Modaraba reviews its overdue receivables from harshs, murabahas and nmsharakahs at each
reporting date to assess whether provision should be recorded in the statement of profit and loss, m
addition to the mandatory provisions required in accordance with the Prudential Regulations 1szued by
the Secunties and Exchanpe Commmssion of Pakistan In particular, judgment by management i
requred 1n the estmation of the amount and tinung of future cash flows when determmming the level of
provision requred. Such estimates are based on assumptions about a mumber of factors and actual
results may differ, resulting in future changes to the prowision Income recogmition on musharakah and

Murahaha 1z suspended when it 1z past due by minety davs or more and clazsified as suspense income.

Impairment of other financial assets

Provision is recognized based on management judgment regarding the recoverability of balance under
expected credit loss method. Balances considered bad and irrecoverable are watten off when identified.

Provisions and Contingencies

The Modaraba remews its provisions and contingencies at each reporting date to assess whether
provision should be recorded mn the statement of profit and loss. In particular, judgment by
management 1z required in the esttmation of the amount and tmung of future cash flows when
determining the level of provizion required. Such estimates are based on assumptions about a number of
tactors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the provision.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The matenal accounting policy and nformation apphed i the preparation of these financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consstently appled to all the yvears presented, unless
othermise stated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.311

a)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carnied in the statement of fimancial positon at amortized cost. For the
purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equrvalents compnse cash and bank balances and
other short-term highly hqmd investments with onginal maturities of three months or less, which are

readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an maignificant nsk of change
in valae.

Advances, deposits and prepayments and other receivables

Advances, deposits and prepayments are imtially recopmized at cost bemg the far value of the
conzideration paid together with the associated transaction cost. Trade and other recervables are wtially
measured at original involce amount.

Financial instruments

Finanmal mstrument: mnclude loans to / recervable from emplovees, long term deposts, trade
recervables, advances, deposits and other recervables, cazh and bank balances, murabaha finances, yarah
rental recervables, investments, creditors, accrued and other Labilities.

Financial assets

All fnancial assets are recogmized at the time when the Modaraba becomes a party to the contractual
prowisions of the mstrument Repular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recopmzed and
derecopnized, az applicable, nsing trade-date accounting or settlement date accounting.

Clazzification

The management deterrmnes the classiheation of its financial assets at the time of mitial recogrition and
classifies its financial assets in the following three categones:

Finanzial asvets at amortized cort

A financial aszet i3 measured at amortized cost if the financial asset 13 held within 2 business model
whose objectrve 15 to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual
terms of the financial asset grve rize on specified dates to cash flows that are sclely payments of
prncipal and interest on the poncipal amount cutstanding.

Finangial areets af fair value through other comprebensive income

A financial asset 15 measured at fair value through other comprehense mncome if the financial asset 15
held wathin a busmess model whose objectrve 12 achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset grve rize on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of pancipal and interest on the poncipal amount outstanding.

Upon mitial recognition, the Modaraba can elect to clagsfy irrevocably itz equity investments as equuty
mstruments designated at FVOCI when they meet the defiition of equity under IAS 32 Financial

Instruments Presentation and are not held for trading, The classification is determined on an instrument-
by-mstrument basss.
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4.3.1.2

Finanaal aeretr ot fair valee throush frofts or fosr

A fnancial asset 13 measured at farr value through profit or loss unless 1t 12 measured at amortized cost
or at fair value through other comprehensive mcome. However, the Modaraba can make an irrevocable
election at imitial recognition for particular mvestments m equty mstruments that would otherwize be
measured at fair value through profit or loss to present subsequent changes in fair value in other
comprehensive mcome unless these are held for trading i which case these have to be measured at far
value through profit or loss. The equity investments of the Modaraba held in short term mvestments are
classified at fair value through profit or loss because they are frequently traded while equty mvestments
i long term mvestments are classified at fair value through other comprehensive income because the
Alodaraba intends to held these to collect drmdends.

Reclassification

When the Modaraba changes its business model for managing financial assets, it reclassifies all affected
financial assets accordingly. The Modaraba apples the reclazsification prospectrely from the
reclazsificaton date.

In case of reclassfication out of the amorhized cost measurement category to fair value through profit or
loss measurement category, fair value of the financial asset 1s measured at the reclassificabion date. Any
zam or loss ansing from a difference between the premions amortized cost and fair value 1= recoguzed

profit or loss.

In case of reclasuification out of fair value through profit or los: measurement category to the amortized
cost measurement catepory, fair value of the financal asset at the reclassafication date becomes its new

SI035 CE.‘II_'!Tfi_ﬂg amount

In case of reclassification out of fair value through other comprehensime income measurement category
to the amortized cost measurement category, the financaal asset 13 reclassafied at itz fair value at the
reclazsification date. However, the cumulative gam or loss previously recogrized in other comprehensive
mcome 15 removed from equity and adjusted agminst the farr value of the financal asset at the
teclassification date. The effective mnterest rate and the measurement of expected credit losses are not

adjusted asa result of the reclassification.

In case of reclassification cut of fair value through profit or loss measurement category to the fair value
through other comprehensve income measurement category, the financial asset contnues to be
meazured at far value.

Inn caze of reclassification out of fair value through other comprehensrve mncome measurement category
to the fair value through profit or loss measurement category, the fmancial asset continues to be
measured at fair value. The comulative gan or loss prevmiously recopmized m other comprehensive
mcome 15 reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment at the reclassification
date.

Initial recognition and measurement

All finaneial assets are recogmzed at the ttime when the Modaraba becomes a party to the contractual
promzons of the mstrument. Repular purchaszes and sales of investments are recopmized on trade-date
that iz the date on which the Modaraba commmuts to purchase or sell the asset.
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4.3.1.3

4.3.1.4

Except for receivables from Modaraba's mam operations, financial assetz are imitially recogmized at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carned at far value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carmed at fair value through profit or loss are imtially recogmized at fair value and
transaction costs are expensed m the statement of profit and loss. Dinndend mecome from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss 1= recogmzed in the statement of profit and loss when the
Modaraba's night to recerve payments is established Becervables from Modaraba's main operations are
mutsally measured at the transaction price if these do not contam a ugmificant fmancng component in
accordance wath IFRS 15, Where the Modaraba uses settlement date accounting for an asset that 1=
subsequently measured at amortized cost, the asset 15 recognized mutially at sts fair value on the trade
debt.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets carried at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method.
Gam or loss on financial assets not part of hedeng relationship 1= recognized m the statement of profit
and losz when the financial asset is derecogmzed, reclassified, through the amortization process or in

order to recognize impairment gams or losses.

When the contractual cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or othermise medified and the
fenegotiation or modification does not result i the derecogmtion of that financial asset, the Modaraba
recalculates the gross carrming amount of the financial asset and recognizes a modification gan or loss in
the statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets “at fair value through other comprehensive mcome’ are marked to market using the
closing market rates and are carried m the statement of financial postion at fair value. Net gainz and
lozses ansing on changes in fair values of these financial assets are recogmzed in other comprehensrre
ncome. Interest calculated using the effectrve interest rate method 1= credited to the statement of profit
or lozs. Dimdends on equity mstruments ate credited to the statement of profit and loss when the
Modaraba’s night to receive pavments 1s established.

Financial assets "at fair value through profit and loss’ are marked to market usmng the closing market
rates and are carned mn the statement of fimancial position at fair value. Net gamns and losses anzing on
changes in fair values of these financial assets are taken to the statement of profit and loss m the penod
m which these anse. Fair values of quoted mvestments are based on current prices. Fair value hierarchies
are described in note 4.19.
Derecognition
Financial assets are derecogmized when:

- the contractual richts to recerve cash flows from the assets have expired; or

- the Modaraba has transferred its nohts to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obhgation to pay the recerved cash flows in full without matenal delay to a third party under a “pass-
through’ arrancement; and either:

a) the Modaraba has transferred substantially all the nsks and rewards of the asset; or

b} the Modaraha has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the nisks and rewards of the
azset, but has transferred control of the aszet.

The difference between the carrming amount and the conmderation recerved 13 recogmized in the

statement of profit and loss.
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4.3.1.5

When the Modaraba has transferred its nights to recerve cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, 1t has retamed the nisks and rewards of
ownership. When it has netther transferred nor retammed substantially all of the nisks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Modaraba continues to recogmize the transferred asset to
the extent of itz continumg involvement In that case, the Modarabha also recognizes an associated
hahility which cannot be offset with the related aszet. The transferred aszet and the azzociated hability
are measured on a basis that reflects the sights and oblhgations that the Modaraba has retamed. -

Continung involvement that takes the form of a puarantee over the transferred asset 13 measured at the

lower of the onginal carrming amount of the asset and the mamimmim amount of consderation that the
Modaraba could be required to repay.

If the Modaraba's continmung mvolvement 15 1n only a part of a financial asset, the Modaraba allocates
the previcus carrmng amount of the fimancial asset between the part it continues to recogmze under
contining mvolrement, and the part it no longer recogmzes on the baus of the relative fair values of
those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carming amount allocated to the part
that 1= no longer recogmized and the conuderation received for the part no longer recognized iz
recogmzed in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Modaraba assesses on a forward-looking bass the Expected Credit Losses (ECL) associated wath 1tz
debt instruments carred at amortised cost and FVOCL The Modaraba recogmses a loss allowance for
such losses at each reporting date. The measurement of ECL reflects an unbiased and probabihity
weighted amount that 1= determined by evaluating a range of possible cutcomes the time value of

money; and

Reasonable and supportable information that 1s available without undue cost or effort at the reporting
date about past events, cusrent conditions and forecasts of future economc conditions. A defanlt on a
fmancial asset 15 when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments within 90 davs of when they
fzll due.

The Modaraba applies the IFRS 9 general approach to measure Expected Credit Losses (ECL) for yjarah
hinance and dimmmishing mmshanks A hfetime ECL 15 recorded on Ljamah finance and dimwmishing
mushanka m which there has been Sigrificant Increase in Credit Risk (SICR) from the date of mihal
recogrution and which are credit impaired as on the reporting date. A 12 months ECL 3= recorded for
yarah finance and dimimshing nushanka which do not meet the catena for SICR or "credit impatred”
as at the reporting date. To aszess whether there iz a monificant crease i credit nsk the Modaraba
compares the nsk of a default occurnng on the asset as at the reporting date with the nisk of default as at
the date of imitial recogmition. The Modaraba also considers reasonable and supportive forward locking
information in determination of ECL. The allowanece 13 increazed by prowisions charged to statement of
profit and loss and 13 decreazed by charge-off, net of recovenes.

In evaluating the adequacy of ECL, the management considers various factors, mcluding the nature and

charactenstics of the obligor, current econonuc conditions, credit concentrations or detenoration

collateral, historical loss expenience and delinquencies.
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4.3.1.6

4.3.2

4.32.1

4.3.2.2

The Modaraba Repulations, 2021 specifies a cntena for classification and prowisioming of impaired
azzetz. The Modaraba while recopnising prowision for impaired assets has considered the amount which
12 higher of (on a facihity basus) 1 accordance wath the pmdance promded by Accounting Standard Board
(ASB):

- the provision required under the Modaraba Regulatons, 2021; and
- the provision requered under IFRS 9 using the Expected Credit Lozs (ECL) model

Write offs

The gross carrping amount of a fnancial asset 13 wnitten off when the Modaraba ha: no reasonable
exzpectations of recovenng a financaal asset in itz entirety or a portion thereof Agamst each customer's
cutstanding ezposure which stands as impared, Modaraba make: an assessment wath respect to the
timng and amount of wote-off based on the espectation of recovery. However, financial assets that are
wrtten off remam subject to legal enforcement actrmties for recovery of amounts due.

Financial habilities

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial habihities are recogmized at the time when the Modaraba becomes a party to the contractual

promzions of the mstrument.

Financaal habilittes are classified, at initial recopmtion, as financial habilities at amortized cost except for
hinancial habibities at fair value through profit or loss, financial hahilities that arise when a transfer of a
tinancial asset does not quakhfy for derecogrtion.

The AModaraba does not reclazsify any of its financial habikties.

Financial hiabilities are imtially recogmzed at fair value minus transaction costs for all fimancial habalities
not carned at fair value through profit or loss. Financial habilities carried at fasr value through profit or
loss are suhally recogmized at fair value and transaction costs are credited m the statement of profit and
lozs.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial habihties depends on their classification as dezcnibed below-

Hinagndal liabilitier at fair value throush profet or losr

Such habihties, including deriratives that are habilities, are subsequently measured at fair valie. Fianeral
habihties at fair value through profit or loss mclude financial habilities held for trading and fmancial
habihities designated upon mmbal recogmtion as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial hiabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing

i1 the near term.

The amount of change in the far value that 13 attnbutable to changes i the credit nsk of fmancaal
hahibity 13 prezented i other comprehensime ncome and the remaming amount of change i the far
vahie of the hability 12 presented in profit or loss.
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4.3.2.3

4.4
4.4.1

Financial habilites designated upon mitial recopnition at fair value through proft or loss are designated
at the mmtial date of recogmton, and only if it elnunates or stpmificantly reduces a measurement or
fecopmition mconsistency or a group of financial habilities 13 managed and its performance is evaluated
ot a fair value bass, i accordance with a documented nsk manapement or mvestment stratepy, and
information about the group 13 provided mtemally on that basis to the Modaraba's key management
persormel. The Modaraba has not desipnated any financial liabality as at fair value through pmﬂt or lozs.

All other financial habilittes are measured at amortized cost using the effective mterest rate (EIR)
method. Gams and losses are recogmzed in profit or loss when the habilities are derecogmzed as well as
through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost 15 calculated by taling imto account any discount
of preminm on acquisition and fees or costs that are an mtepral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization
13 mncluded as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial habihty 12 derecogmzed when the oblication under the habihty iz discharped or cancelled or
expired. Where an existing financial hability 13 replaced by another from the same lender on substantally
different terms, or the terms of an emisbing Labibty are substantally modified, such an exchange or
modification 15 treated as a derecogmtion of the ongmal habihty and the recogmition of a new hability,
and the difference in respective carrving amounts 1s recogmzed in the statement of profit and loss. The
difference between the camrymg amount of a financial habiity extincuished or transferred to another
party and the conmderation paid, inchiding anv non-cash assets transferred or habihties assumed, 1=
recogmzed m the statement of profit and loss.

If the Modaraba repurchases a part of a financial hability, the Modaraba allocate: the previous canrmng
amount of the financial hiabsdlity between the part that continues to be recognized and the part that 1s
derecogmized bazed on the relatrve fair valoes of those part: on the date of the repurchase. The
difference between the carrming amount allocated to the part derecogmred and the consideration paid,
mcluding any non-cash assets transferred or habilies assumed, for the part derecogmized is recogmzed

i profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial assets and habilities

A financial assets and a financal habilibes are offset and the net amount 1z reported m the statement of
fnancial position if the Modaraba has a legally enforceable nght to offzet the recognized amounts and
intends either to settle on a net basiz or to realize the asset and settle the habshity srultanecusly.

Murabaha and Musharakah arrangements
Murabaha arrangements

Modaraba obtams an undertaling (pronmse to purchase) from the client and purchases the requested
assets / goods from third parties and takes possession of such goods / assets that are the subject matter
of murabaha arrangements. However, the Modaraba can appomt the client as itz agent to purchase the
assets/poods on itz behalf. Thereafter, sts sellz these goods / assets to the client at cost plus the profit
agreed upon mn the promise. Murabaha sale 15 recorded at the invoiced amount and profit 1= recopmzed
in accordance with IFAS-1 (Alurabaha) to the estent of pro-rata porton of sale price recemved as
compared to total agreed price. Profit on the portion of sale revenue not due for payment 13 deferred
and recogmmzed as habihty. Goods purchased by the Modaraba but remained unscld, with the Modaraba
constitute mrentones. 1f anv at reporbine date.
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4.4.2

4.5

4.6

Musharalkah arrangements

The Modaraba meazuges the musharaksh recerrables on the basiz of installments accroed dunng the
vear. The mstallments are accrued on pro-rata bams as per terms of the musharakah agreement between
the Modaraha and cnstomer.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets in own use and related depreciation

Fized assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and mmpairment losses, of anv. Depreciation
1z charged to income by applying the straight-line method at the rates grven m note 7.

Depreciation on addibions to operating fixed assets 13 charged from the month in which the asset 15
acquired while no depreciation 1z charged for the month i which the asset 1z disposed off.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to mcome a3 and when mourred. Major renewals and
improvements are capitahzed. Gain/loss on dispozal of assets 1z charged to current vear's mncome.

Assets given to customers held under Ijarah arrangements

Assets given to customers under yarah arrangements are assets available / held for yarah which are
accounted for as operating lease assets n accordance wath IFAS-2 and are stated at cost less
accummlated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Assets under narah arrangements are depreciated
using the straoht hine basis over the period of lease term. In respect of additions and transfers duomg
the vear, depreciation 1= charged proportionately over the penod of yarah. Gamn/loss on disposal of
assets 15 chargped to current vear's mcome. At the end of the lease financing peniod, asset 1z transferred to
the customer in accordance with the armangement of Ljarah as per the Accounting and Aunditng
Orgamszation for Islamme Financaal Institutions {AAOIFT) shariah standard.

- Muy'ir (lessor) presents the asset subject to Ljarah i its statement of financial position according to
the nature of the asset, distinpuished from the assets i own use.

Cost, mecluding depreciation on the assets grven on Ljarah incurred in earning the Ljarah income are
recogmzed as expenses.

- Imitial direct costs incurred specifically to eam revenues from ljarah are recopnized as an expense in
the statement of profit and loss i the penod in whch they are meurred.

Intangible Assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and mmpairment losses, if any. Amorhsation 15
charped using the straioht hne method over the asset's estmated useful bife at the rate stated m note 19
of the financial statements, after taking into account the residual value, if any. The residual values, useful
lives and amortisation methods are remewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each reporhno date
Amortisation on additions 13 charged from the date the assets are available for use up to the date the
assets are disposzed off m accordance with rate specibied mn respective note of the financial statements.
Gain and losses on disposal of such assets, if any, are included i the statement of profit and loss.
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4.7

4.8
4.8.1

4.9

4.10

Impairment of assets

The Modaraba assesses, at each reporhing date, whether there 1z any mndicaton of impairment If such
mdication exmsts, the recoverable amount of such asset 13 estimated. An mmpairment loss 1= recogmized
wherever the carrmng amount of the asset esceeds its recoverable amount Impairment losses are
recogmzed mn the statement of profit and loss. A previcnsly recognized imparrment loss 13 reversed only
if there i3 2 change i the estimates used to deterrmne the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
smpatrment loss was recogmzed. If that 1s the case, the carrming amount of the asset 15 mcreased to its
recoverable amount. That mcreased amount cannot exceed the carrming amount that would have been
deternuned. net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recogrized for the asset in prior vears.
Such reversal 12 recognized in the profit and loss account. Where an impairment loss 15 recopmzed, the
depreciation charge 1= adjusted 1n future penods to allocate the asset’s revised carrming amount over its
estirmated useful Life.

Stock in trade
Stock in trade for murabaha transactions

Murabsha transactions are entered into on customer order basiz. The requested goods / assetz are
procured on customer request and are immediately transferred to the customer. Therefore, in normal
circomstances, there 13 no inventory. However, unsold mventory, if any, 12 measured at lower of cost

and net realizable value as at the reporting date. Cost 15 deternmned on weighted average basis.
Provizsions

Provisions are recognized when the Modaraba has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, and it iz probable that an outflow of rescurces embodving economic benefitz will he

required to settle the oblization and a rehable estimate of the amount can be made Promsons are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Ljarah assets

Islarmic Financial Accounting Standard (IFAS) 2 Tjarah' issued by the Insttute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan was adopted by the SECPE wide SRO 431(1)/ 2007 dated May 22, 2007. Under
IFAS 2, the Ijarah transactions are accounted for in the following manner

Mustapr (lessors] presents the assets subject to Ljarah in their statement of finahcal position according
to the nature of the asset. The Mustapr 15 required to distinpuish thesze Ijarah assets from the assets

ORI 026,

Costs, mcluding depreciation on the assets miven on Ljarah, mcurred in earming the Ljarah income are
recognized as expenses.

Ljarah mcome 1z recogrised in income on an acerual basiz as and when the rental becomes due, unless
another systematic basis 15 more representatrve of the time pattern in which the benefit of the use
dernred from the leased asset 13 dimunished.

The SECP, wide itz letter No. SC/ AL/ R/ SCAL /2009 dated March 9, 2009, allowed that in casze of
Modarabas, IFAS 2 shall be apphed for Ljarah transactions emecuted on or after July 1, 2008
Accordingly, the Modaraba ha: accounted for Ijarah transactions executed before July 01, 2008 as
_nance leazes and has treated the ljarah transactions executed on or after July 01, 2008 i accordance
with the requirements of IFAS 2.
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4111

Leases

For contracts entered into, or modified, on or after July 1, 2019; the Modaraba apphes IFRS 16 to such
transactions, except for the transactions where Modaraba 15 a lessor and the lease iz an operating lease,
and i such cases, the provisions of IFAS-2 are applied. The Modaraba assesses whether a contract
contans a lease or not at the iception of a contract. For lease contracts the Modaraba reassesses
whether a contract 15, 0r contains, a lease further when the terms and conditions of the contract are
modified.

The Modaraba determines the leaze term az the non-cancellable period of a leaze, together with both
peniods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Modaraba 15 reasonably certan to exercize that
option and penodﬂ covered by an option to terunate the lease if the Modaraba is reazonably certam to

not to exercize that Dphorr_

The Modaraba reassesses whether it 15 reasonably certamn to exercise an extension option, or not to
exercise a termination option, upon the occurrence of either a sigmificant event or a sipmificant change in
circumstances that 1z withm the control of the Modaraba and affects whether the Modaraba 1=
reasonably certamn to exercize an option not previously incladed in its determination of the lease term, or
not to exercize an option previcusly included in the determination of the lease term

The Modaraba revizes the lease term if there 15 a change in the non-cancellable peniod of a lease.

Modaraba as a lessee
Recognition

The Modaraba recogmzes 3 nght-of-use asset and a lease Labibitv at the commencement date. A
commencement date 15 the date on which the lessor makes an underlving asset available for nse by the
leszee (the Modaraba).

The Modaraba has elected not to recognize nght-of-use assets and lease Labilities for short-term leazes
of all underlymo assets that have a leazse term of 12 months or les: and leases for which the underdying
agset, when new, 13 of low—value as per the threshold zet by the Modaraba The Modaraba recognizes the

lease pavments associated wath these leases as an expense on straight-line basis over the lease term.

Initial messurement
Loase Eability

At the commencement date, the Modaraba measures the lease hability at the present value of the leaze
payments that are not paid The lease payments are discounted usmng the mnterest rate implicit in the
lease, or the Modaraba's incremental borrowing rate if the implicit rate 15 not geadily available. Generally,

the Modaraba uses itz mcremental borrowng rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments compnze fized payments less any lease incentrres recervable; vanable lease pavments
that depend on an index or a rate; amounts expected to be Pa‘l::able by the Modaraba under residual
value guarantees; the ezercize poce of a purchase option if the Modarzaba is reasonably certam to
exercise that option; and pavments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
Modaraha exercizing an option to terminate the leasze.
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4.11.2

4.12

Right-of-sure areet

The Modaraba imitially measures the nght-of-use asset at cost. This cost compnises the amount of lease
Lability as mutially measured, plus any lease parments made on or before the commencement date, less
lease mecentrves recerved, initial direct costs and estimated ternmnal costs (1e. dismantling or other site
restoration costs required by the terms and conditions of the lease contract).

Subsequent mezsurement

Legse hability

After the commencement date, the Modaraba re-measures the lease hability to reflect the effect of
mnterest on outstanding lease habihity, lease pavments made, reaszsessments and leaze modifications ete.
Vanable leaze payments not mcluded in the measurement of the leaze halulity and mterest on lease

hiability are recogmized m the statement of profit and loss, unless these are included in the carrymng

amount of another aszet.

Lease parments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the leaze hahility using

the mncremental borrowang rate smpheit in the lease to achieve a constant rate of interest on the

remaimng balance of the habihty.

Right-gfsre areet

After the commencement date, the Modaraba measures the npht-ofuse asset at cost less accumulated
depreciation and asccumulated identified smpairment losses, if any, adjusted for any remeasurement of

the leaze hability.

The Modaraba depreciates the cost of nght-of-use azset, net of residual value, from the commencement
date to the earher of the end of the useful hfe of the nght-of-use asset or the end of the leaze term
Howerer, if the lease contract transfers ownership of the underlving asset to the Modaraba by the end
of the lease term or if the cost of the nght-of-use asset reflects that the Modaraba wall ezercize the
purchase option, the Modaraba depreciates the noht-of-use asset from the commencement date to the
end of the useful life of the undedwming asset.

Dlepreciation 1¢ charged to the statement of profit and Ioss at rates prven in note 17.2.

Modaraba as a lessor

Leazes m which the Modaraba does not transfer substantially all the nsks and reward: meidental to
ownership of an asset are classibed as operating leases. Such leases are treated under IFAS-2 and the
accounting polcy for assets given to customers under yarah arrangements (Note 4.3.2) 15 appled for

such leases.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from yarah and murabaha 15 recogmized as per the requirements of the Islammc Financial
Accounting Standards (IFASs). Reparment schedule 15 agreed at the start Payments are usually due over
the period of contract at different dates.

Murabahs profic
Profit on transactions under murahaha arrangements 13 recognized on a pro-rata basis taking into

account the elapsed duration for payment of murabaha amount: payable by the customer. Profit not due
for payment m the curent vear 13 deferred by accounting for uneamed murabaha imcome wth
corresponding credit to deferred murabaha income which is recorded as a liability. The same 1z then
recognized a: revenue on a tme proportionate basis as and when the due dates approach for pavment
of recoverable amounts br the customers.
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4.13

4.14

Musharakah profit
Profit on dumnishmg mmusharakah transactions 1= recogmized on accrual bass.

Ijarah rentals

Ljarah income 15 recopmzed m mcome on an accrual bass as and when the rental becomes due, unless
another systernatic bams i3 more representatrve of the time pattern i which the benefit of the use
dered from the leased aszet 1= dinunizhed.

Documentstion income
Documentation charges, front end fees and other yarah related imcome are taken to the statement of
profit and loss on an accrual basis.

D¥vidend income
Drvidend income 15 recognized when the night to recerve dimdend 1= established.

Capital gain or loss
Capital gan or loss on sale of investments is recopmzed 1 the peniod 1n which it arises.

Rental income
Rental ncome from mvestment properties 1= recogmzed on time proportionate basis.

Return on deposit accounts
Beturn on deposit accounts 15 recopnized on accrual bazis. Income from shanah non complant assets
clasafied as chanty pavable.

Levy and income tax

Currant
Prowision for current taxation iz based on taxable income for the year determined i accordance with

the prevailing laws for tazation on mcome earned. The current tax expense i3 calculated using prevaling
tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the taxzable profits for the vear at enacted tax rates. The charge
for the corrent tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, relating to poor vears ansing
trom assessments made duning the vear for such vears.

Deferred

Deferred tazation iz accounted for usmg the balance sheet habihty method prowiding for temporary
differences between the carrming amount of assets and habihties in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit Deferred tax habilities are
generally recogmized for all taxable temporary timng differences and deferred tax azsets to the extent
that it 12 probable that tazable profits will be avalable against which the deductible temporary
differences, unuzed tax losses and tax credits can be utbized.

Deferred taz is calculated based on the rates that have been enacted or notified for subsequent
enactment up to the reporting date and are expected to apply to the peniod when the difference anses.

Levy

In accordance with Income Taz Ordinance, 2001 (Ordinance), computation of final taxes is not based
on taxable income. Therefore, as per IAS 12 Application Guidance on Accounting for Minimum Taxes
and Final Taxes 1ssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), these fall within
the scope of IFRIC 21. There are no matenial final taxzes/levy that fall within the scope of IFRIC 21
dunng the vear ended June 30, 2023,
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4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

4.18.1

Post employment benefits

The AModarsba mamtains 2 defined contribution plan for post emplovment benefits and operates an
approved provident fund for all itz emplovees. The Modaraba and the emplovees both make equal
monthly contrbutions to the fund at the rate of 10% of the basic salary of emplovees.

Dividend - Profit distribution and other appropriations of profit

Diidend distnbution to the Modaraba™s certificate holders iz recognized as a hability 1n the fmancal
statements n the period m which the drmadends are approved by the Modaraba Management Company.

Transzfer to statutory reserve and anv of the mandatory appropoations as may be required by law are
recognized m the period to which these relate

Appropriahons to statutory reserves declared / approved subsequent to statement of financial position
date are conudered as non-adjusting event and are not recorded in fmancial statements of the current

vear. These are recogmzed in the vearin which these are declared / approved.
Eamings per certificate

The Modaraba presents basic and diluted earmings per certibicate (EPC). Basis EPC is calculated by
drmiding the profit or loss attributable to ordinary certificate holders of the Modaraba by the weighted
average number of ordinary certificates ou.t-ttand.tng dunng the vear. Diluted EPC iz Jeterrrined by
adjusting the profit or loss atteibutable t5 ordmary certiheate holders and the weighted average number
of ordinary certificates outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary certificates, if any.

Operating segments
An operating segment 1s 3 component of an entity:

a2} that engages in busmess actrvities from which it mav eam revenues and incur expenses (including
revenues and expenses relabng to transactions with other components of the same entity);

b) whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chuef operating decision maker to
make decisions about resocurces to be allocated to the segment and aszess its performance; and

¢) forwhich dizcrete financial information iz avalable.

Operating seoment: are reported 1 2 manner consistent with the internal reporbing provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The Clhuef Executive Officer of the Modaraba has been identified as
Chiet Operating Decizion Maker.

The Modaraba 13 drmided mnto four operating segments:

- Murabaha finances;

- Larah finances;

- mmsharakah finances; and

- Dtrrestments.

All these operating segments are located 1n Paksstan.

Segment assets and liabilities

The assets of a segment mnclude all operating assets vsed by a segment and consist prncpally of
recervables and fized assets, net of allowance: and prommons. Segment habihities are pomanly
unallocahble.
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4.18.2 Allocation of segment expenses

4.19

All identifiable expenses are directly attributed to the respective segments.

Fair value measurement

The Modaraba measures certain financial instruments, and non-financial assets such as assets classified
as held for sale and investment property, at fair value at each reporting date.

Fair value 1z the poce that would be recerved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a habiblity m an ordedy
transaction between market participants at the measurement date m the principal, or in its absence, the
most advantageous market to which the Modaraba has access at that date. The fair value of 2 hability
reflects the effect of non-performance nsk When applicable, the Modaraba measures the fair value of
an mstrument vame the quoted price m an active market for that instrument A market 13 regarded a:z
active if transactions for the asset or habidity take place wath sufficient frequency and volume to prowide
prcing mformation on an ongomg basis.

When measunng farr value, the Modaraba takes into account the charactenstics of asset or hability
which include the condition and location of the asset and restrictions, if anv, on the sale or uze of the
azset

The fair value of an azzet or a hability 15 measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or hability, assunung that market participants act in therr economc best
nterest

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s abdity to

generate econcrmc benefits by uamng the asset m its huchest and best use or by selling it to another
market particspant that would use the asset in itz highest and best use.

The Modaraba uses waluation techniques that are appropoate in the circomstances and for which
sufficient data 15 avalable to measure fair value, mazimmzing the use of relevant observable nputs and
mumnuzng the use of unobservable mnputs.

Valuation techmques used to measure fair value are apphed consistently unless a change 1n a valuation
techmique or its apphcation results in a measurement that 15 equally or more representative of fair value
i the circumstances. Revisions resulting from a change in the valuation techmique or its appheation are
accounted for az a change in accounting estimate.

All aszets and habilities for which fair vahie 13 measured or disclosed m the financial staterments are

categonzed within different levels of the fair value hierarchy, based on the lowest level input that 1=
sigmficant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

Fair value hierarchy categonzes mto following three levels the mputs to valuation techmiques used to

measure fair value:

- Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) m actrve markets for identical assets or habihtes that the

MModaraba can access at the measurement date.

- Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices mecluded wnthin Level 1 that are cbservable for the asset
or hability, either directly or mdirectly.

- Level 3 — Unocbservable inputs for the asset or habdlity.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Modaraba has determined claszes of assets and hahilities
on the basis of the nature, charactensstics and nisks of the azset or habality and the level of the fair value

hierarchy, as explained above.
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4.20

4.21

3.1

Assets classified as held for =ale

Non-current assets clasarfied as held for sale are presented separately and measured at the lower of their
carrang amounts immediately prior to their classification as held for sale and their fair value less costs to
zell However, some held for sale assets such as financal assets or deferred tax assets, continue to be
measured i accordance with the Modaraba's relevant accounting policr for those assets. Once classified
as held for sale, the assets are not subject to depreciation or amortization. However, annual mmparment
testing 1s carned out by the management.

Workers' Welfare Fund

The modarzba accrue: and pavs 2% contnbution of its total income to Sindh Revenue Board as
required by the Smdh Workers Welfare Fund (SWWF) Act, 2014

RESTATEMENT IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The June 30, 2024 financial statements were restated for a correction 1 an accounting error relating to
the change m accounting policy in respect of taxtion and an accounting arror related to prowision of

sales tax on management fee.

Change in accounting policy in respect of taxation

Dunng the vear, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (‘TCAP’) has withdrawn Techmical
Releaze 27 TAS 12, Income Tazes (Rewized 2012)" and issued the TAS 12, Application Gudance on
Accounting for Minmmum Taxes and Final Tazes’ (“the Gudance”). Accordingly, i accordance with the
Guidance, the Company has changed its accounting policy to desipnate the amount calculated on
tazable mcome uvsing the notfied tax rate as an income taz expense. Any emcess over the amount
dezignated as icome tax, 13 then recognized as a Levy under TAS 37, Promsions, Contingent Tiahohities
and Contingent Assets’, which were previously being recognized as ‘income tax’.

Accounting error related to provision of Management fee

The June 30, 2024 financial statements were restated for a correction m an accounting error relating to
the prowision of sales tax payable on management fee. The 2024 financial information has been updated
to correct this error.

The 2024 financial information has been updated to correct for this error, as follows:

Effect of poor penod emor adjustment on the financial As previously Cormecuon Ry
statements for the year ended June 30, 2024 reported of error

Rupees
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
Profit net of opemting expencze: 29.561,017 - 29561017
Mdodaraba Management Company's fee (2,956, 10 - (2.936.102)
Sermices zales tax on the Managemen: Compant's renmnemnon . (384,293 [384.293)
Wotkers' Welfare Fond (532.098) 7,686 (324412
Profit before taxation and levy 26,072,817 {376,607 23,696,210
Ty, istieasonin o sisd ol G ; (4,841,691} (4,541,691)
Profit before tanaton 26072 81T (3.218.298) 20,834,519
Taxaticn (4,541 851% 4341891
Profit for the vear after taxanon 21251126 (376,607) 20,834,519
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

7.2

7.3

7.4

01

0.2

0.3

2025 2024
Right of uze assets Note - Rupees
Opening balance 8,963,532 2,240,663
Additions during the vear 5,731,351 8584347

14,700,383 10,825,010
Depreciation charpe for the year 36 (3.860,426) {1.856478)
Closing balance T3&TA 10,839,957 5,968,332
Lense term 1-5 vears 1-5 years
Deprecation rate 2% 20%%

There are no varizble leaze pavments in the leaze contractz. There were no leazes with residual value guarantees or
leases not vet commenced o which the Modaraba is commiteed.

All assets are geographically located in Palkistan

INTANGIBLE ASSET
Cost
Balance at beginming of the year 2,272,000 1,230,000
Additions dunng the vear = 1,022,000
Closing balance 2,272,000 2272000
Accumulated amortization
Balance at beginning of the vear 1,323,060 1,094 448
Charged during the vear 36 407,328 228612
Closing balance 1,730,388 1,323,060
Writren down value 541,612 948,940
Bate % 33% 33%
MURABAHA FINANCES - SECURED
Conzidered good 91 892 17,357, 1m 16579718
Conzidered doubtful 9.3 36,755,652 37912995
Prowision for doubtful long term murabaha finances 94 (6,673,778 6,674,996
47,438,935 47817721
Current portion (40,232.404) 41.708,561)
Non-corrent portion 7,156,581 6,102,160

The Modaraba has =old goods under murabaha arransements whereby pavment is deferred along with specified
profit margin, These finances are secured by wav of hvpothecation stocks, mortpare of properties, demand
promizsort notes, charge on aszets and personal guarantees.

The mazimmm ageregate samount outstanding dunng the year at anyv point s Ra 66,265,408 (2024: Rs. 60.909.052).

Break up of considered doubtful Murabaha finances

Considered doubtful 38,251,245 39511777
Suspended income 9.3.1 (1,495,593) 1,598,778
36,755,652 37.912.999
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9.4

10

101

10.2

10.3

11

Suspended income MNote
Opening balance

Reverzal duting the vear al
Suzpenzion made during the vear al

2025 2024
Rupees
1,398,778 1,710,508
(103,185) (221.600)
- 109,870
1,495,503 1.598,778

The doubtfl mursbaha finances inchide receivables from 6 {2024 6) customers under murabaha Snance which 13
under ktization. [epal proceedings apainst these customers are in process in the Courts of Law. The Courts have
awrarded decree in favor of Modaraba in 2 (2024: 2} cases for recovery of Rz 534002 milion (2024: Rz 54.002

million).

Provision for doubtful long term murabaha finances

Opening balance
Provizion for the year
Beverszals for the year

Clozmgp balance

DIMINISHING MUSHARAERAH FINANCING - SECURED

Considered good

Current portion

Provision for Diminishing Musharakah finances 103
Non-current porton

2025 2024
————Rupees

6,074,900 5511015
- 1,430,393
(1,218) (266,414
(1,218) 1.163.981
6,673,778 6,674,996
222 089,949 178,400,012
(74,237,249, 45,244,359
{3,734,822) {3.734,822)
144,117,878 129,420,851

Thiz represents faclity given to 38 (2024: 48) customers. The faclities are secured by way of asset. Costomer will
participate in cost mnging hetoreen 25% to 0% in purchasing the nmsharakah asset

The mazimum agpregate amount ocutstanding durng the vear at anv point is Rs 227082949 [2024: Rs

183.356.803).

Provision for Diminishing Musharakah finances

Opening balance
Charge for the year
Closing halance

LONG TERM DEPOSITS
Central [)r:prl.lilrnr}' f_:t-mpnn}' of Pakistan Limuted

Rented property
Oithers

2025 2024
Bupees

3,734,822 1,389,102
- 2,345,720
3,734,822 3.734 822
154,862 154,862
105,000 105,000
34,300 34,800
294 662 294 662
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

14

14.2

Mote 2025 202

DEFERRED TAXATION ] Rupees—-— -
Taxable / (deductible) temporary difference in respect oft

Fized assets in oovn use 2,068,858 1,505,741
Fight of uze aszets 3,143,588 2600874
Provision for short term Murabaha finances (3,500} -
Prowisiom For doubiful Harah rental receivables (366,862) (368,688,
Provision for doubtful Murabaha finances (1,915,022) 1,048,303}
Prowision for short term Muosharakah finances (93,108) (93,108
Prowision for Diminishing Musharakah finances (1,083,008) 1,083,098
Pravision against recervable - FSD property - (1592109

Unrealized loss on revaluation of financial
- assets at fair value therough profit og loss (265,500) (43792100

Unrealized loss on revaluanon of financial assets ar

- fair value through other comprehensmre moome - (250.221)
Lease Habilises against right of use assers (2,900,026) 2,503,199,
(1,416,970) (1,659,122
MURABAHA FINANCES - SECURED
Considered good - -
Considered doubtful:
_ Regular parties 5,000,000 -
_ Parties under hitigation 14.1 28,800,000 33,800,000
33,800,000 35,800,000
Birisinn i dinbibal ool 142 (8,420,000) (B.400,000)
144 25,380,000 25 400,000

These represent recemvables from 2 (2024: 3) customers wader Murabaha fnance Legal proceedings against these
customers are in process in the Honorable Cousds of Law (Banking court of Lahore). The Couds have swarded decree
in faver of Modaraba in 2 (2024: 3) cases For vecovery of Rs, 35,944 million (2024: Rs. 39727 millioa),

Provision for doubiful receivables

Opeming balance 8,400,000 11,540,988
Income El.l.‘iPI'.'l'Idl'_'l.I. during the year 35.1 20,000 -
Feversal during the vear - (130377

Written off during rhe vear due o senfement 3,010.411)

8,420,000 5,400,000

The mazimum aggregate amount outstanding during the vear at any point is Bs 33,800,000 (2024: s 33,800,000,

The Modaraba has sold goods under Murahaha sefangements whereby payment iz deferred along with specified profit
margivn These finznces are secured by way of hypothecation of stocks, mortgage of properties, demand promizsory
notes, charge on aszets and personal guarantees,

IJARAH RENTAL RECEIVABLES - SECURED

Considered good 131 470,042 877,636
Parties under hittgation - considered doubtfol 152 5,026,212 3,026,107
suspended harah income - considered doubtful 153 (B43,499) (B3 4040,
Presmsion for doubtful jarah reotal recemvables 154 (1,265,040) (1271339
3,387,715 3788925
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

15.1

15.2

15.3

15.4.1

16.1

Thesze are secuced against ijarah 2zsets and personzl guarantees. In some jjarahs, addifional collaters] iz slso obtained
the form of mortgaged property. The Modaraba iz entitled to repossess and sell the ijarnh assets in caze of defaslt by
the customers.

The doubtfol [jarah zentsl: inclade receivables from 2 (2024: 2) customers under ljarah finence whick is uader
Ltigation. [egal proceedings agsinst these customers are in process in the Courts of Law, The Courts have swarded

decree in favor of Modamba in 2 (2024 2 cases for FECLVETY ( f Bs, 3.020 million (2024; Rs. 5026 mi“iun'],
2025 2024
Suspended fjarah income - considered doubtful Mote ————--Rupees-—-—---
Crpening balance 843,499 343,499
Income suspended dudng the year 30 - .
Feversal during the vear - -
843,499 542,499
Provision for doubtful Farah rental receivables
COpening balance 1,271,339 1,239,706
Promision for the vear - 11,633
Feverzal during the vear (6,299) -
Clozing balances 1541 1,265,040 1.271.339
All rentals receivable pertam o arrangements excented under Isfanue modes of financing,
2025 2024
MUSHARAKAH FINANCES - SECURED MNote Rupees
Conzidersd good 10,499,750 13,716,817
Prewision fer Muosharakah Gnances 16.1 (321,061) {321,061}
10,178,689 13,395,756

Provision for Musharakah finances

Opening balance 321,061 820,474
Reversal for the year - (409413
Closing balance 321,061 321,061
SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS
Financial assers ar fair value through profit or loss:
NIT lslamic Equity Fared - 314
Shares of hsted comparmes 171 14,287,295 20970173

14,287,295 20,970,987
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171

Shares of hsted companies

Unless eitherwise smred, the haldings are in fully paid ordinary shares of Rs, 10 each,

Mumber of shares MName of Investes June 30, 2025 Juae 30, 2024
W25 2024 ﬁﬁ Market Value  Avemage Cost  Marker Value
Rupees
CEMENT
- 40000 Fawji Cement Cormpany Limited - - B38.563 916400
- 20,000 Maple Leaf Cement Limired - - 736280 Te0L000
- - 1,645,145 1,676,400
O1L & GAS MARKETING COMPANIES
- 11000 Paldistun Stare O Company Limied - - 1,968 341 1,828 510
- 15,000 Shell Pakisean Listed - - 2427 483 2011300
- 120000 Hascol Peteoleum Limited - - 1622511 742800
- 6,086 Su Morthern Gas Pipelines Linvged - - 434 605 386,273
10,000 - S Sourhern Gas Company Limiced 376,9% 427,900 - -
376,0% 427,000 6,433,005 4 963 353
OIL & GAS EXPLORATION COMPANIES
- 20,000 Pakistan Perroleumn Limiced - - 3,565,730 5.315.500
- 10000 Ol & Gias Development Company - = 1577451 1,355, 700
Lirnieed
- - 4941161 4,567,000
REFINERY
- 4000 Amock Refinery Limired - - 1,509 564 1,406 360
20,000 23000 Pakistan Refinery Limired T17.236 678,600 822743 380,000
J20,000 100,000 Cnengyico Pk Limived 2,628,231 2,281,600 1,092,241 383,000
M5.467 2,960,200 S424 547 2571 560
POWER GENERATION & DISTRIBUTION
10,000 10,000 Hub Power Comparms 1,354,000 1,378,100 1,632,763 1,630,800
1,354,080 1,378,100 1632763 1,650 300
FOOD & PERSONAL CARE PRODUCTS
- 10,000 Unity Foods Led - - 327977 301,300
- 20,000 Fawji Fouoes Limited - - 2X0.675 177, 400
- - 548635 473,900
TEXTILE COMPOSITE
- 23300 Wishar Mills Limited - = 2458379 1,506,673
- - 2438.579 1.806.673
PHARMACEUTICAIS
30,000 - Cid Pharmn Limited 4,547,833 4,193 500 - -
10,000 3000 The Searle Company Limited 8B87.028 E_l_ﬂ,nm 294,629 285,600
5,434,561 5,075,200 254 579 283600
TECHNOLOGY & COMMUNICATION |
= 10,000 Metsal Technologics Limited - - 1,372,309 1.357.600
30,000 - Ocmpus Dhigital Limied 3,047,250 2,575,000 - -
3,047,230 2,575,000 1,372 500 1.357.600
CHEMICALS
440,000 20,000 Engeo Polymer de Chemical Limited 1,707,262 1,262,000 938 57 393400
1,707,262 1,262,000 939.574 393,400
TRAMSPORT
- 23000 Pakistan Insernzconal Bull Terminal - - 145,095 154 250
- - 165.0%5 154 250
PROPERTY
- 20,000 TPL Propertes Limited - = 231678 174 800
- - 231675 174 300
PAPER, BOARD & PACKAGING
19,500 10000 Cenury Paper and Board Mills 790,112 608,595 428 104 299 500
790,112 603,595 498 164 200500
16,056,038 14,287,295 24,652,903 2050173
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172

17.21

1722

181

182

18.3

18.3.1

Unrealized gain on revaluanon of financial assets
ar fair value through profit or loss

Unreahiwed puin on shores

Lnrealized pain on mutual funds

Unrealized gain on shares

Dhfference betureen market value and aversge cost
- Cozeent Tear

- Pooe vear

Unrealized gain on mumal funds

Dhfference berveen market value and average cost
- Cosrent vear

- Prior vear

ADVANCES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Laains v/ recelvalde from emplovees - eonsidered good

Preparments

Advance apmnst leaze

Advance against expenzes

Accroed profit (zecured - conzdered pood)
Trade recerrable: - considered pood {zecured)

Legal suits” eharges receivable (secured - considered pood;

Sundrr recemrables (onsecnred - consdered good)

15.1

15.2
153
154

M2 2024

1,913,987 ” 13,476,450

233,790

1,913,987 157122
768743) (3.682750]
3,682,730 || 17159210
1,013,987 13,476,450
= 155
5 733,637
5 233,790
399,000 344,300
4,927,915 4,125,226
y 2,000
22272 350,000
2,333,714 2,507,683
2,204,112 2311076
384,474 541763
10,791,497 11363243

Thiz includes the loan given to and receivable: from executive: amountng to Bz 0.232 milion (2024: Bz 015 millicn). The
execgdves are incduded in the ke management personnel of the Modarab, The loans are provided for manimum pesod of one vear

pencd and dednenble from emplovess malanes.

Maximurm apprepate balance due from emsconres and emplovess. at the end of z2or monath doang the vear, was Bz 0393 ovllion

(2024: Re. 0872 millica).

Accrued profit

Profit receivable on musharakah fnances
Less: Suspended incoine

Trade receivables

Cpemng balance
Gros: amount
Allowanes for douboiol trade receivables

Wiarten of dunng the year

Movement in provision for doubtful wade recervables

Opemng balance
less: prosision wrren off dunng the yvear
Clozing balzace

18.5.1

2025 2024
Rupees
2,353,774 ” 2327655
2,353,774 2,327,633
100,000 || 100,000 |
100,000 100,000
. 100,000
(100, 000)
100,000 190,000
(100,00) -
= 100,000

TRITZT MODARABA Arnnal Report 2023



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

15.4

1541

18.5

Legal suits' charges receivable MNote
Operng balance

Expenses mcureed

Wrire off due to seftlement 1341

Gross amoont

Allirwance for doubrful legal suits' charges receivables 1341

Movement in provision for doubtful legal suirs’ charges receivables

Opemng balance
Promzon wotten off doang the vear due to setlement

Eeceivable against sale of Faisalabad Propermy
Less: promision wrothen off dunng the vear

Less: provision recogrized

2025 2024
---—--—-Rupees—--—-----
2,718,002 | 2 675,852
5,000 102,150
- (60,000
2,723,002 2718002
(518,890) (406,926)
2,204,112 2,311,076
406,926 466,926
111,964 -
. (60,000)
518,890 406,926
549,000 549,000
(549,000) :
= 549,000
- (549,000}
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

18.1

19.2

20

11

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

- Cument accoonts
- Baving accounts

Savings account - dividend
Balances With banks - total
Cash in hand

Mote

191
19.2

2025 2024
Rupees

27 538 12,144
3,364 844 3.366.270
3,302,382 5.378.414
5,647,679 5,005,881
0040061 10382295

26,302 1,766
9 (66,363 10,384,061

This incinde bank accoont manfaned BF Modaraba With State Bank of Pakistan 45 per the requirement of BED circolar No. 04 of

2003 for recovenng CIB service charges having balance of Bs 26,850 (2024: Rs. 11,427

These carry profit at rates mnging fom 2.78% 10 10.01 Yo {2024:10.01% o 11.01%) peranmum.

DEFERRED INCOME ON MURABAHA
DIHiﬂgDAlmﬁE

Additions quiing the vear

Recopmized during the vear

Current portion
Non-corent portion

CUSTOMERS' LONG TERM SECURITY DEPOSITS

Opening bakince
Received duang the vear

Adjusted dudng the vear

Closing Dakance

Cutrent portion shown 45 coment Habiities
Xon-Corrent portion shown a5 non-current Fanilities

These sepresent deposits received from customers to secure the farah assees given to them.

LEASE LIABILITIES AGATNST RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

Opening balince
Additions dusing the vear

Add unwinding of lease Habilities

Add: adjusment due o lease modificatons
Less: pavments made during the vear
G053 BaDility

Less: cutrent prrtion

Noo-cureent portion

Note

211

2025 2024
Rupees
3,180,750 3412936
3,458 086 3.715.948
(3,585,936) (3,945,134
3,052,900 3,180,730
(2,043,402) (2,272,786}
1,008,498 907,964
35,993,638 43317513
. 720,000
(18.978320) (12338873
17,020,113 33,998,638
(5,340.730)  (11.660,17
11,179,368 24338 468
7,042,065 2308760
4,678,651 6,809,652
12,620,716 9,338,431
2,678,014 736,495
. 46,365
(5.298,642) (2,199,246
10,000,085 7.842.065
(2,730,428) (1,799,923
7,269 660 6,142 147
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21

232

24

Mamnty analysis of contactmal cash flows

Later than one
Within one wear but not Later than
Ar 30, 2025 b
Prue W, vear later than five five years
years
{Rupses)
Undiscounted cash flows 4,994,4% 10,327,402 -
Less: discountng (2,265,029) (3,256, 781) -
Dhscounted cash flows 2,729 467 7,270,621 -
At June 30, 2024
Undiscounted cash flows 3583248 9436172 -
Less: discoanmng 1,783,325} 13,344,030 -
Dhzconnzed cash Sows 1.799.925 5.142.142 -

Summary of amounts relanng to leazes charped mn different hne items of the finzncial satements 13 as follows:

Carnang amowt of RO asseis 732 10,839,957 8,965,552
Diepreciation charge 73 3,260,426 1,856,478
owinding of lease Tabilines 36 2,678,014 756,495
Bepavment of leaze hahilicy 2 5,208,642 2,192 244
UNCLAIMED PROFIT DISTRIBUTIONS

Crpening balance 12,828,131 12,331,607
Add: dividend declared doang the vear 14,500,000 -
Less: dividends paid (14,031,043) (2478
Closing balance 231 13,697,083 12825151
Movement in dimidend bank account:

Cipening balance 5,003,851 4323407
Add: dividend declared dosng the vear 14,900,000 -
Dividend claim recerred and sentled (14,031,043} (3.478)
Profit seceqved 287,578 329 536
Tax on peofit recered (43,018) (79433
Chanity paid 23 {469,000) (266,000
Bank charges (719 (453
Closmna balance 19 5,647,670 3,003,351

Manarement bas mamtamned foads of Re 2,647,679 (2024: R=. 3,003,531) apainst voclamed profit distobunon of R 13.697.083
(2024: B=. 12.828.131) reculting chorape of fond: of Bs 8040409 (2024: B= 7,824 230 Thiz chortape of fonds of R= 8,049,409
selates to vaclimed profit distnbotion whea Maodamba was managed by Toost Management Sesvices [previcn: management
compiny| from incorporation tll 200% when change of management wook place theough appomtment of adminiztator by resistrar
uader section 1% and 20 of Modarsba Compames znd Modarabas (Flotagon and Centrol) Oodinancs. 1980, Modaraba has
mantaned complete funds for vaclumed profit diszobonoa after acgmzinon of Al-amin Management Company Limited m 2009

ull date. 2025 2024
{Restated)

CREDITORS, ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES MNote ~——Rupess———
Pavable to Modaraba Manapement

Company (Related party) 37 2,686,354 2956102
Prosvrsion for Woorkers” Weltare Fund 517,762 374373
Arcmed expenzes 1,310,336 T80 802
Other Labilities 1,931,658 3967 867
Zales tax on management fee parable T2 2,882,365 2479412

9,328,473 12 738,538

CHARITY PAYABLE

Oipemrng halance 269,332 -

Addinions dedng the vear 251 408,076 535,552
Praicd #ur recognized chantshle institutions (509,000) {266,000
Closing balance 108,608 269,552

It represents the profit earmed on seclzimed dividends held in aspecialized dimidend acconnt mamtaned with Meeran Bank, as
well as the Sharah non-compliant portion of dinidend income. The profits received ace donated 1o approved chantable instmion:.
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26 CERTIFICATE CAPITAL

26.1 Authonzed cernficate capital

2025 2024 2025 2024
MNumber of cernficates MNote Rupees

Modaraba certdficates of
70,000,000 70,000,000 BR=. 10 each 700,000,000 TO0,000,000

26.2 Cerdficare capiral

2025 2024
MNumber of ceruficates
Modaraba certificates of Rs.
15,000,000 15,000,000 10 each fully paid in cash. 150,000,000 150,000,000

Medaraba certificates of Rs.
10 each fullr paid ir cazh
12,300,000 12,300,000 issued as fully paid bonus 26.3 123,000,000 123,000,000

Modaraba cestificates izzued
of B=. 10 each issued :in
conzideration of azsets as
2,200,000 2,300,000 zesult of take over 26.4 25,000,000 25,000,000

29,800,000 29_800,000 298,000,000 293,000,000

26.3 Theze fully pad bonos modaraba cerificares of B, 10 =ach wers 1szved before 2009 when modamba was managed by Trost
Manapement Sermices. After change of management company no modarsha cervificates wers izsned a= bome certificates from 2009
il date.

6.4 Al-Zamin Modaraba Management (Pavate) Limuted bolds 3261388 (2024: 5,261,385) Modaraba cembcates winch represent= 13%
(2024: 18%) of the equity atake in the Modaraba (25 agunse [0%) as requited by the SECT wide Chrder Mo, SCOM B Trost /200544,

26.5 Zubszeguent to reporting date, Mr. Sohml Az ha= become 2 substantrs] cerhficate holder with a cumulatrre holding of
17.96% on Angost 29, 2025,

26.6 All certificates rank equally with regard to residusl azsets of the Modariba, Certificate holders are entitled to secerve all
distrbotion: mcuding profit distobutions and other entitlements in the form of bonus and night certfreates 35 and
when declared by the Modaraba, Yeting and othes vights are in propornen o the shareholding.

2025 2024
{Bestated)

e RESERVES MNote o Rupeeg---—-—-—
Statotory reserve 271 91,634,768 BR.032.069
Fevenue reserves:

- Accamulited losses (40,875,B21) (38,294.404)
50,755,947 49 737 575

271 Thiz represents profit et aside a5 required vader section 13(1} of the Modaraba Regolations, 2021 for Modarabas 2=
iszped by the Securities and Fxchange Commission of Pakistan Dhuring the current yesr, the Modaraba has transferced
an amount of s 3.678,020 [2024: B=. 4.772.087) which represents 20% (20024: 20%%) of the profit after tax.
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28

29
29.1
29.1.1

29.1.1.2

29.1.3

29.1.4

249.1.5

UNREALIZED LOSS ON REVALUATION 2025 2024

OF INVESTMENTS —————— Bupees-=esaees
Opening balance {3,872,095) {6,501 457)
Surplus on revaluation daring the year 1,872,095 2629557
Clessing balance - (3872093

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Congngencies

MNotee was served o Trose Modaraba dared 28 Auguse 2018, along with certam other modarabas, by Sindh Revenue
Board {(SRB} for the recovery of mx under Sindh Sales Tax on Services Aet, 2011 amounntng 1o Rs, 3552 millicen
comprsing allegedly unpaid sales mx on services rendered in Sindh from vears 200 1-12 o 2017-18,

The Maodaraba along with other Modarabes has filed a petiton in Honorable Sindh High Coure (SHC) on Sepremiber 1
208, ehallenging the demand of Sindh Revenue Board (SRR} on the grounds of neo-applicability of sales s, A sty
orcler in this regard has been granted by the SHO stadng that no adverse onder in respect of the proposed treatment
shall be made against the Pettioners. The management of the Modaraba based on s discussions with s legal eounsel s
of the view that in light of the stay order of the Court and the merits of the matrer invobved, the impugned charge of
sales tax will be quashed and favorable outcome is expected. Therefare, no provision For any sales tax labiliny oo rentals
of leaze financing has been made in the financial statements. The court direcred that no further coercive action shall be
taken against the petitoner, and that the mamer may be adjudicated vide a speaking order after providing an oppormuniry
of lmanrl.g to the petitioner. The learned counsel for the rcsp::n.clr_'nt raised oo ubir.'cl:iun., and the petition was
aceordingly dispused of in these wems.

The Assistamt eommizssioner Inland Revenoe (ACIRY hat iseued order dated June 30, 2022 by ereating demand under
sub-secton 161 of Rs 1038285 along with default surcharge of Rs 809,862, The tax paver has filed appeal againse sad
order on July 16, 2022 hefore commissioner Inland Revenue (CIR), During the vear, CIR remanded back the case o
(ACIR) and easpaver bewg aggmieved by the order of CIR filed appeal before Appellate Teibunal Inland Revenue
[ATIE). The ATIR annulled the findings of ACIR and remir the magrer to officer of Infand Revenue (OTR). As at year
end, the marter is pending before the OIR.

The Deputy commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) has ssued order dared Aogust 31, 2021 by crearing demand under
sub-secrion 122 (1) of the Income Tax Ondinance, 2000 for Rs 5,776,892 The Modaraba had Aled appeal againse said
order before Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIRA), who vide order daged 24-]an-2022 remanded the casce
with direetons o pass a speaking order by going throogh the relevant record. Oppormunines of hearing were provided.
During the vear, DCIR passed the order dated June 24, 2024 by creanng a demand of Bs 3776892 and maspayer being
aggricved by the arder of DCIR filed appeal before CIRA, which 15 pending for adjudication, The management, in

consultadon with s tax advisor, has determined that favorable cutcome is expeced,

The Deputy commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) issued notices dated Awgust 18, 2023 by confrontng amount of Rs,
143347 and Rs. T32R50 apminst tax years 2020 and 2021 respectvely under sub-section 228(2) of the lncome Tax
Chedinance, 2001, These demands pertain o the adjusoment of refunds against the admitted rax labilives, The Modaraba
has submitted a derailed [ESpOnse to the IMCIR, :H:Eﬂrﬂplaﬂil:d hf cnmprchtnsivc documentary evidence. Dedsion 1=
pending but the management, in consultaton with its tax advisor, bas determined thar favorable outcome is expected.

On December (6, 2022, Sindh Bevenue Board (SRB) isseed a notice under Secnon 73 of the Samps Act, 1899 w
several modarala companies for inspection of the records regarding stamp dury applicability, The Meodaraba responded
on December 22, 2022 that the Modaraba is a non-banking financial insttion and Stamps acr, 1899 15 nor applicable.
However without prejudice oo the ophts and remedies and cnly as o mateer of cooperadon, the management partally
complhied,
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20.1.6

k1l

On December 12, 2023 the Modaraba received a demand from Sindh Revenue Board (3EB} against stamp dury of Rs,
28508 and Rs, 108 500 zpplic:ll‘:il: on purchase orders and promissory notes rc:i]:u:ctivd}', covering the penod July 01,
20200 1w Mareh 03, 2023, The Modaraba responded on January 08, 2024 thar Ardcle 15(b) of the seamps acy, 1899 deals
with the manufacturing concerns or business which underrake carmge of stores and marenals and as such v 15 not
'.Lppricah]r_' i MBFCs and Modarabas mvobved in Sharah E:rmpii:mt asset financing. The matter s bemng dealr ar the
agsociation level.

Regarding the stamp dury on promissory note uinder See 2{22) of Ardele 28 of the Stamps Act 1899, the managenient
has acknowledged its application and has recogrived a provision for the period of Taly 01, 2022 ro June 30, 2025 in Mo
18 armounting to Rs. 145 800,

The Medaraba had enfered inte the following firancing agreements with different paroes whoe had defaolred:

: . Qutstanding | Parties under Parties for Mote
Financing P ok
5. No. amount litigation decree No.
1 ljarah 5,026,212 2 2 15
= Short term Murabaha 28, 800,000 2 2 14
3 Long term Murabaha 36,755,652 5 2 o
70,581,864

Lesgal prncr.'cdmgﬁ were inittated to recover the outstanding amounts and are heing pursuu:l:L The management, n
conzultation with 25 legal advisor, believes that the outcoines will be favorable,

Diminishi ng Musharaka commitments

The Modaraba has eneered into Diminishing Muosharaka areangements for vehicles, These arrangements have remaning
terms of less than five vears, Such arrangements alse inclode a lause o enable upward vevision of the renral charge on
an annual basis zccnfding T p-r::x'ziﬁng market condinons. Famre installment payments due under these arrangements at

the year end are as follows:

2025 224
Note 0 e RUpEes==semen=

Mo later than ene year 4,555,49% B 03244
Later than one vear and not later than five vears 10,527,402 U 456,147

15,080,898 12,6449 315
Dhishursement of larah / Murabaha ¢ Musharakah o
e made 1o customers 11,000,000 16 HE
INCOME FROM IJARAH - NET
Ineome from Hacsh operations 25,081,272 51,329.593
Less: depreciation on fised asscts given on ijarah .l (15,853,599) 3, 206,055
Laiss: vakaful on fjaral assers (1,788,060) (A A00, 154

7,409,613 15,716,710
PROFIT ON MURABAHA FINANCES
Profit on murabaha finances 3,781,336 4, 124076
Income suspended dunng the vear 9.5.1 - (109,870
Reversal of suspension income 251 103,185 221,600}
3,884,521 4,235 BilG

PROFIT ON MUSHARAKAH FINANCES
Profic on musharakah finances 57,280,082 FU604,050
Ineotme suspense reversed during the vear - 23200
Lezs: commission of selling apent (282,500 -
Lezs: tkaful on diminishing musharakah {6,351,335}_ (4 AR O1H)

50,645,697 45219441
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33

3.1

DIVIDEND INCOME ON EQUITY INVESTMENTS 20125 2024
Company Name Note e Ru, i e
Hub Power Company Limited 512,500 93,000
Attnck Refinery Limired 75,000 2
Mishat Mills Limited 91,500 140,000
Paldistan Refinery Limited 50,000 -
Pak Perroleum Limited TO, 00 S0,
Sui Northern Gas Mipe Line Limitec - 135,000
Dawood Hercules Corporarion Limiced - 5,154
backy Cement Limired - ELIRERIE
Descon Chorchem Limaced - 20, 00D
il & Gas Development Company - i, 50H0
Shell Pakistan Limired - 25,0010
Faysal Bank Limiced - 240,000
Fargmes Polymer & Chemical Limited - [RERETY
Lalpir Power Limited - 300, 00H
799,000 601,654

Dividersd inecme hag been punfied by anamount of Rs 38450 using the porification rates prescribed by the Pakistan
Stk Fxchange (PSX) 10 eliminare the poroon relating 10 non-Shariab compliant ncome,

2025 24
OTHER INCOME an: Rlly\.l\.v
Gain on disposal of farah assets 150 1,908,293 all2 299
Gradn on disposal of owned fixed assers 2,150,460 414,908
Preofit en deposit and saving accounts with banks 378,779 526,759
Miscellanerus income M1 834,762 1,720,598

5,272,294 3.204,924
This includes an amount of Rs, 591,600 (2024: Rs. 737500 pertaining 1o documentation fee.

PROVISION FOR DOURTFUL RECEIVABLES

Opening balance 21,458,144 21,637,211
Add: charged during the vear ELR| 124,447 2E91 544
Less: Murabaha provision written off due 1o settlement t4.2 - (3010411}
Le=s: tracle receivables written off during the year 15.3 (10, Oy B
Less: legal charges recemvables” written of F during the pear CARET)
Less: receivable against sale of Faizalabad Property
wiitten off during the year i85 {545, 00 .
et prenvision reversal fur the year (524,553) (179.067)
Closing balance 352 20,933,5M 21,458,144
2025 2024
Break up of provision (net of reversals) for Mo e Rupees—m—m——-
doubtful receivables charged during the year are
as follow:
Long rerm muarabaha finances 4 (1,218) 1,163,981
Shorr rerm murabaha finances 4.2 20,000 (130,577
Lung term mushaakah finances 10.3 - 2345720
Shire term musharakah finances 14.1 - 4949413
Lyarah rent receivables 15.4 (6,299) 11,633
Legal suits charges receivable 18.4.1 111,964 -
124,447 2RY1, 344

TRUET MODARABA Arrnal Report 2023 [lﬁa',



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

35.2

36

6.1

Break up of provision for doubtful receivables

are as follows:

Provision for doubtful long term murababa finances
Prenrision for deuheful shomt ternm murabaha finances

Prowiston for Musharakah finances
Prosvision fur Diminishing Musharakah fnances

Prowision For trade receivables

Provision for legal suits charges reccivable
Receivahle agninst sale of Faisalabad Property
Provision for doubtful arah rencal recervables

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salanes, allowances and other benetits

Fees and subscnprion

Dipreciadon on right of use asscts

Vehicle running

Urniwanding of lease labilities
Repairs and maintenance

Rent, rates and taxes
Telephone, postage and ceourier
Electriciry; gas and water
Depreciation on own assets
Printing and stationery

Bad debs written off

Auvditors’ remuneration
Entertainment

Traveling and conveyance
Crhce supply

Amertizadon on intangible assets
Legal and professional charges
Advertisement

Insurance

Registrar's services

Bank charges and commission
Miscellancones

9.4
14.2
1a.d
13
18,3.1
18.4.1
18.5
15.4

31 & 362

T2

6.3

6,673,778 6,674,995
8,420,000 #,400,000
321,061 321,061
3,734,822 3,734,822
- 100,000
518,590 406,926
- 549 00}
1,265,040 1,271,359
20,933,591 21,458,144
24,559,931 18,105,318
4,306,369 3,811,794
3,860,426 1,856,474
2,783,196 277,625
2,678,014 54,445
2,337,285 2.734,103
2,039,826 YR G01
1,604,910 1,475,991
1,476,878 1,404,146
9493, 25H) 1,085,798
779,265 H43, 485
3 S, (00
BR0,000 SH1,96000)
536,335 727,247
489,565 522 563
415,384 :
407,328 228612
293,000 AR5, 1000
218,983 118,435
161,937 23,505
161,801 126,522
24,380 18,580
484,554 2TTarT
47,501,657 38007 94

This includes Rs. 1.014 million {2024: Rs. (.985 millicen) in respect of conmbution o the staff provident fund,
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36.2 Salaries and wages also include salarles and allowances of executives as per the following desuls:
2025 et Prechtives Exccutives Others
Officer
Rupees
Basic salary Z 6,056,184 6,277,565
House rent allowance - 2,422 248 2,534,090
Medical allowance - 605,568 931,141
Crher allowances - 44,400 674,350
Retirement benefiis - o5, 616 408,769
3 9,734,016 10,525,915
Number of person(s) 1 3 15
Inz4
Basic salary - 5976.144 £021, 284
Hemse rent allowance - 2202 1,963, 660
Medical allowance - 507 564 403 (156
Odther allowances - 75,537 T 953
Retiretment benetits - 507612 3BT 216
E 0.637.149 BA6E, 169
Number of personfs) 1 3 13
3621  Execuanves have been provided with modaraba maineined cars and are also ennrled for reimbursemenr of fuel expenses.
As per fourth schedule to the 'Cnrnp:l.n.'ic:{ Ay, 2017, "Execoove” means an |'_':|n'|':nLr.1:.'|'_'r_'1 other than the chief cxecubve and
directors, whose lasie salary exeeeds twelve hundred thovsand rupees in o fnancial vear,
2025 20z4
36.3 Auditors’ remuneration Rupces
Aonmal andit fee 3, K 316,800
Half vearly review 08,000 14,700
Code of eorporate povernane 120,000 14,5000
Shartah audir fee 150,000 -
Chat of pocket expenses 157,004 75,00
BHY.H00 581 900}
k. MODARABA MANAGEMENT COMPANY'S FEE
371 The modaraba management company is entitled 10 2 remuneraton for services rendered 1o the modaraba under
provision of the Modarabs Compames and Modarabas {Floaradon and control) Ohedinance, 1980 up 1o a maximun of
1% per anum of the annual peofits of the Modaraba,
7.2 Sindh sales tax fevied by Sindh Gevernment on remuneration of Modaraba Management Company has been charged at
the rate of 15%0 {June 30, 2024:13%).
38 LEVY, MINIMUM TAX AND FINAL TAXES
Final rax KL 103,913 9101
Minirmum tax - 4,742 5490}
103,913 4,541,691

381 This represents final tases paid under secton | 500of Income Tax Ordinance, 2061, in terms of requirements of 1FRIC
21 and 1A8 37.
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2025 2524
39 TAXATION MNuote Rupees
Current mx expense for the year 4,356,796 4,309,915
Prior pear mxaton 225,792 62045
Dieferred tax 222152 AT0,632
LU 4,804,740 4,742 590
39.1 Relationship between accounting profit and mxation
Aceounting profit before tsanon 253,294,751 25,696,210
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 20% {2024: 17%%) 4,356,796 4.36K,350
Tax effect of:
- Permanent diffcrences 222,152 -
- Adjustments relating to prior years 225,792 2045
< Chilvers - 347,264
4,804,740 4,777,008
40 EARNINGS PER CERTIFICATE - BASIC AND DILUTED
Net profit for the year Rupees 18,390,095 21,231,126
Welghted average namber of certificates Murnber 29,500,000 29 BOLO00
Earnings per certificate Rupees 0617 1712

401 There is no dilutinn effect on the hasic carnings per certificate of the Modaraba,
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M

41.1

2025 2024
(Restaredd)
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS Note = e Rupees-—mmaeem-
Profit before raxanon 23,298,751 20554 519
Adjustments for non-cash and other items:
- Depreciation:
Linder i';:lmh f | ]5,333,599 34,206,684
In own use T.1 993,290 1,085,796
Right of use asscts T2 3,860,426 | 856,475
Amortization on intangible assers 8 407,328 2280612
- Provigion for doubtiul receivahbles 124,447 2,801 344
- Gamon disposal of Barah assers 34 (1,908,293) (502,299
- Gain on disposal of vwned fixed assers 34 (2,150,460) (418268
- Losson disposal of asser held for sale - 4,240,500
- Loss / {profity on long terim investment (797,752) 2,232,230
Balances wearten o ff 3 - SOH000
- Loss { {profit) on sale of short rerm investments {4,564,535) 5,197 370
- Unrealized loss [/ (zuin) on revaluation of Anancial assets
ae fair value thiough profit or loss 17.2 {1,795,730) {13,712 2711
- Usnwinding of lease liabilifies 2z 2,678,014 756,495
- Workers' Welfare Fund 475,485 K24412
- Dividend income X3 (799,000} (G667
12,406,819 38,331,729
Operating profit before working capital changes 35,705,570 59,156,244
Dieerease / (ncrease) in curtent assets
- Advanees, deposits; prepayments and other receivables 1,073,751 (2,113,074}
Shert rerm murabaha finances receivables - 7,368,608
- Shori term musharakah finances receivables 3,217,067 3,502,792
- ljarah rental receivables 40’],21{] {1 ,U“E,?EH}
Increase, (decrease) in current liabilicles
= Charity payable (160,924 260,532
Creditors, acerued and other liabiliges (3,885,568) 13,209 463
645,536 21,324,593
Cash generated from operations 36,351,106 AL 510,541
Changes in Financing Activities
As at June 30, MNon - cash Cash flows  |As at June 30,
2024 Changes {Met) 2025
Rupees
Unelatmed profic diseibution 12,828,131 {12,494,176) (14,031,043) 13,697,088
Lease habilities against nght of use assers 7942065 {12,643,511) (5,298,042) 10,000,088
20,770,196 (25,137,687)  (19,329,685) 23,697,176
As ar June 30, Non - cash Cash Bows | As at June 30,
2023 Changes {MNet) 2024
---------- Rupees——
Lireclaimed Pr{:ﬁr dismmbunon 12 831,607 - {3,476) P2.825 131
Lease liabilitics against ight of use assers 2,528,769 7,612,542 (2,199,246) 7,042,065
15,360,376 7,612,542 (2202722 20770196

Impact of non-cash changes in lease liabilities compnse of interest charge on lease Habilides Rs. 2,678,014

(2024: Rs, T56,495) (refer to noge 223,
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42 MATURITIES OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
2025
Tatal Up tor oo year e yeac tn five Over five years
years
Ml feceidilinis daidnn s ima i s s BUPERE o i viiaiia sinssdas cmaiaidaiiain visig
Assers:
{)per:lr.irq.: Fiesd s E'h'en on Jease f :in:rlh - l.'.l.l.'l.i_';il‘.\lf & 31,‘3‘,5‘.’3 1.5,“-9,533 !.5,-195.1141 -
Crperaring fixed ssxets inovwn use - angible 7.1 13,719,220 = 11,238,159 2,481,031
Right of use nscts T2 1in, B39, 05T 2,730,428 #,109,520 -
Inangible asset i 541,612 66672 474,540 F
Lixng werm nmarehabia finances i 47,438,985 e 7,136,581 .
Laeng tetm musharakaly finances o 218,355,127 74,257,249 144,117,878 -
Lingg tetm deposis 1 204, 562 & 139,800 154,262
| g term InreEnTent 12 - . . .
Deferred tagation - net 13 1,416,970 1,416,970 - -
Shoit terny mutabaha finances - secured 14 25 380,00 25,380,000 - -
ljarak rental recervabiles - secured i5 3387715 3,387,715 . .
Short term muesharakah Anances It T, ATH, 8 1,178,689 . .
Ineome wx refundalsie 5,280, 45% 5,280,459 - -
Short erm investments 7 14,287,295 14,287,295 - -
Advances, prepayments and other recanvables 1R 10,290,497 W, 291,497
Cash and bank bakanices e 4,066,363 9,066,363 - -
01,063 224 212,595 373 186,751,958 2,635,893
Liabhilitics:
Dieferved income om murabaha 20 3,052, M0y 2,045 40 1,08 495 -
Custormers’ bung e security deposis 3l 17,020,118 2,840,750 11,179,368 e
Lesage lizhidices agmanst right of use assers a3z 10, 000 DEE 2750428 T 264, G0 .
Unclaimed profit destribations 23 13,697,088 13,647,055 - -
Crediters, acerued and odher Babilines 24 4328475 0328475 - -
Charity payable 108,608 108 608 . .
53,207,277 33,748,751 19,458,526 E
Met Balance 348,755,947 178,446,622 167,273,432 2 635,893
Certificate holders' equiry BB, TRE,94T
Unrealized loss an tevaluagon of investments -
Surples oo revaleancn of fAxed assers "
Mer Balance 343:'1'5.5.‘1-#1'
2024
"Treal -l L!p tor (e Yoar ] Ukne vear o Bye -l e five JEhrs
Tl | | e e S e A e e 2 R T L S R
Asscis:
Casl and bank halances (1] 10384 04 10 384 0| -
Tnvestments 17 20970547 20970, 547 - -
Achvances, deposits, prepuyments and other recencahles I 11,345 244 11,545 244
Tarah rental receivaliles - seeuned 15 3784005 iThR G5 - -
Inwome tax refumdalsle 3T Ol FT Des - -
Loty tenm mvrshaha Homnees 7 4T A17.721 41,748,561 LNLGAEE -
Axset held for sale (Y
Elterr rerm murahaha finances - secured 14 25, 400 KD 25,4800 M) - =
Long term musharabkals fnsces 1 174 65,1 B 45 244 155 129 420,831 -
Shuirt gt ikl Arimtes i 13,395,756 13,395.756
Deferved taxarion - net 14 1630122 16301 22 - -
Drepeszars 1 262 - 125 800 L34 802
Irtvestimerits 12 L34 B0 - 224 B0l -
Crperating fxed assets gprven on lease [/ fjarabh - eanghie I T 450,750 15,554 571 SR RN TR -
Ulperanng fixed assers o own use - tanghle 7.l 13,5974 60 - 11732817 2.2, R4T
Righer 0 amse asacrs 72 B h6E532 1,709 523 T 168 ol -
Lntangmble aseet K LRI G4 LT BRI 2InA
414351 474 193 315,55 T16634,165 2401 0%
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43
43.1

4311

43.1.2

43.1.3

RISK MANAGEMENT
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Modaraba's activities exposc it to a varery of financial risks: market tisk (including currency tisk, other
price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity rsk. The Modaraba's overall sk management focuses
on the wnpredictability of financial markers and secks w minmize potenoal adverse effects on the financial
performance,

Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors (the Board) of the Management Company, chief
operatng officer and chief financial officer. The Board provides principles for overall risk management, as
well as policies covering speafic areas such as currency sk, other price risk, interest rare sk, credic Ask and
ligquidity risk.

The Modaraba's overall risk management procedures, to minimize the potential adverse effects of financial
market on its performance, are as Forlforws:

Market risk

Market risk 15 the risk that the fair value of furure cash fows of & financial instrument will fluetare because of
changes in foreign cutrency, profit eate, commodity price and equity price that will affect the Modaraba's
inconme o the valae of 1ts hol dh\gs of financial instrumens.

Currency risk

Currency nisk 15 the risk thae the farr value or forure cash fows of a financial instroment will fluctuate becawse
of changes n foreign exchange rates. Carreney osk ardses mamly from future commercial transactions or
receivables and pavables thar exist due to transactions in foreign currencies, The Modaraba is nor exposed to
currency risk arising from currency exposure as Modarzba 1s not involved in foreipm currency transactions,

Profit rate risk

This represenes the rsk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market profit rates,

As at the reporting date the profic rate profile of the Madaraba's profic bearing financial instruments were as
unlet:

2025 2024
Fixed rate instruments MNote wmmmmree-Rupees- ——
Financial asscts
Shore term murabaha finances 14 25,380,000 25400 [0
ljarah reneal receivables 15 3,387,715 3,788,925
Long term murabaha finances 9 47,438,985 47817, 721
Long term musharakal finances 10 222,089,949 178 400012
Short term musharakah finances ¥l 10,178,689 13,395,756
Floati .
Financial assets
Bank balances - deposit accounts 19 3,364,844 5,366,270
Bank balances - dividend account 9 5,647,679 5,003,551

Fair value sensitivity analvsizs for fixed rate instruments
The Modaraba does not accounr for any fixed rare financial assees ar faie value throogh profic and Toss.
Therefore, a change in profit rate at the reporting date would not affece profit or loss of the Modaraba
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43.1.4

43.2

43.21

P -

i, . =L R CIEY TR = 0 W o 1 K Al 17151 -
The Modaraba accounts for any varable rate financial assets ar fair value through profic and loss, Therefore, a
change in proft rate at the reporting date would affeot profit or loss of the Modaraba,

NEIMAmenis

Cash flow sensitivity analysis [or variable rate instrinments

If profit rates, as at the reporting dare, fluctuates by 1% higher { lower with all ocher variabiles held constant,
profit before raxation for the year would have been Rs. 33,648 (2024; Rs. 53,663} higher / lower. This analysis
ie prepared assuming the amounts of fleating rate instruments cutstanding ar reporting dates were outstanding
for the whole year,

Price risk.

Equity price risk represents the rsk of adverse movements in the fair value of equity secutities due to
Auctuations in the KMI-30 Index or the prices of individual shares. Such risk arises from the Modaraba's
investments in equity securities whose futore prices are uncertain. In line with the Modaraba Regulations,
2021 and internal risk management policies, the Modaraba manages price tisk through diversificadon and by
maintaining exposures within prescribed limies.

The Modaraba contrals this risk by restricting exposure to a single investee company to a maximum of 10% of
the investes company’s ssued capital and the Modaraba’s net assers, in accordance wich the Modaraba
Regulanons, 2021, Portfolo allocatons are reviewed regularly and ac least on o quarterly basis o ensure
appropriate diversificanon across induseries and individual stocks.

Credit risk

Credirt risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the ather
party by failing to discharge an oblgation. The carmying amount of financial assets represents the maximum
credit exposure. The maximum exposure oocredit osk st the reportng date, ner of impairment, was as
foallevars:

2025 2024

Maote —————Rupees--—-——
Bank balances 19 9,040,061 11,382,205
Shert term murabaha finances 14 25,380,000 25,400,000
Ljarah rental veceivables 15 3,387,715 3, TRE 2R
Long rerm musharakah finances 10 222 089,949 178,400,012
Short term musharakah finances s 10,178,689 13,395,756
Long term mueababa Anances o 47,438,985 47817721
Long term deposits 11 294,662 204,662
Short term Investments 17 14,287,295 20,970,987
Lomg term Investments 12 - 2284801
Advances, deposits and other receivables 18 10,291,497 11,365,248
342,388,853 314,100,407

75)
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43.2.2 Concentration of credit risk
Geographically all credit exposuare is eoncentrated in Pakistan,

The mazimum exposure to credit risk for receivables (murabaha financing, musharakah financing and ijatah)
as at the reporting date by type of customer was:

2025 Mi2d
== -Rupees--—--—-—

Individuals 112,740,683 75,465,076
Trading of goads and services 47,398,433 51,632,834
Educational Insttations 18,484,693 51,024,603
Food and Albed 31,630,653 33,372,362
Technology & Communication 15,637,203 17,455,756
Ol & Gas 27,742,927 15,693,553
Registrar Services 15,079,548 14,384,790
Agticulture 14, 800,000 (ERVETIREEN
Insurance; Tracker 10,585,800 10,290 231
Steel 16,704,292 5,435,928
Advertising/Media agency - 0,639,229
Construction 7,400,043 B,653,112
Packaging 5,048,957 7096 383
Healthcare 30,158,328 TAG3GAT]
Dyairy & poultry 1,661,380 2256775
Textile 1,096,727 1,431,297
Clearing Forwarding - 877,545
Societies - 532,140

356,469,667 332,455,294

43.2.3  The aging of murabaha, masharakah, lease / farah rental and trade receivables and related impairment loss as
at the reporting dare is as follows:

Aging of murabaha, musharakah, lease / ijarah rental and trade receivables

Not past due 272,446,445 252 467 TR
Past due 1 - [BO d*.t].-'r, 1,739,850 3,395,763
Past due 181 days - | year 1,581,595 947,877
Past due 1 - 2 years 2,300,000 236,292
More than 2 vears 73,047,470 70,478,771

351,115,360 327 526,488

Aging of impaired murabaha, mosharakah,
ijarah rental and trade receivables

Past due 181 - 365 days

1-2years 6,804,441 6,779 904
Mote than 2 vears 14,678,150 14,678,130
21,482,591 21.458.144

The Modaraba has adopied a policy of only dealing with creditworthy parties and obtaining sufficient
collateral, where appropriate, as a means of minganng the risk of finangal loss from defaults, The Modaraba
alse wses other publicly avalable financal informanon and s own rading records w0 rate ies customers, The
Modaraba's exposure and the credit ratings of its pardes are contnuously monitored snd the aggregare value
of transactions concluded is spread amongse approved counterparties, Credit exposure 15 controlled by
counterparty limits that are reviewed annually.
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43.2.4

433

The management monitors and limits Modaraba's exposure to credit risk through monitoring of clients’ credit
exposure, reviews and conservative estimates of provisions for doubtful receivables, iF any, and through the
prudent use of collateral policy. The management is of the view that it is not exposed to significant
concentration of credit tisk as its financial assets are adeyuately diversified in organizadons of seund financial
standing covering various industrial sectors and seginents.

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to
external credit ratings (i available) or to historieal information about counterparty default rate. The tble
belrwr shows the bank balances and invesunents held with some major counterparties at the reporting date:

Rating Raring
Short tern Agency 2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
Meezan Bank Limited AT+ JCR-VIs 9,013,211 10,370, 868
State Bank of Pakiztan - E 26,850 11427
9,040,061 10,382 295

Further, the Modaraba's exposure o credic nisk and smpairment losses refaced o Investments, Murabaha
financing, [arah Anancing, and other receivables are disclosed in the relevant notes ro the financial statements,

The Modaraba's exposure related to fjarah receivables, murabaha receivables and musharakah receivaliles are
secured by collaterals held and the Modaraba's portfolic of financial assers is broadly diversified and
transactions are entered into with diverse credit worthy counterparties thercby mitigating any significant
concentration of credit risk,

Liquidity risk
Liguidaty risk 1 the visk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meetimg obliganons associated with financial liabilities.

The Modaraba's approach o managing liquidity is o ensure, as far 15 possible, thar it will always have sufficient liquidity to
meet its Habilites when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring vnacceptable losses or risking
damage o the Modaraba's reputadon. Ovwing o the fact that the Modaraba is in # positve working capreal position at the year
end, the manggement believes the ligquidity dsk o be low,

The table below amalyses the Modaraba's finandial liabilifies into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining penod at
the reporting date o the conteacrual matunne date, The amounts disclosed in the tible are the contractual undiscounted cash
Henws. Balances due within 12 months eguate to their earrving balances as the impact of discounting is not significant,
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43.4

Carrying || Contractual || Less than Berween 1

Amount cash flows 1 year and 5 years Krvme S yeatn
(Rupees)
June 30, 2025 VARRTERE
Lease liabilities against right of use assets 100, (KL, OEE 10,000,088 2,730,428 T 269,660 -
Unclaimed profit distributions 13,697,088 13,697,085 13,657,085 - -
Creditors, acerued and other liabilides 9,328,475 9,328,475 6,453,796 2,874,679 -
Charity payable 108, 608 108,608 108,608 - -
33,134,259 33,134,250 22,989,920 10,144,339 -
June 30, 224
Lease fiabilites against right of use assets TA42 065 TH42065 [,798.923 6,142,142 <
Unelannied profit distributens [2H2H.13 12528131 12828131 o =
Creditors, acerued and other liahilites 10 2006,832 0266832 10,266,832 -
Charity payable 26033 260 532 269 532

31306, 560 31,006,560 25164414 i, 142,142

MNote 42 1o the financial statements summarizes the maturty Frﬂﬁlt of the Modaraha's assers and Hahilicies,

Fair value of financial instruments

Al financial assers and financial liabilines are mimally recopnized ar the faic value of consideraton paid or received, net of
trangsaction costs a5 appropeiate; and subsequently caened at Fair value or smortzed cost

The carrving valoes of all fnancial assets and labilives reflected in financial stavements approsimate o their faie valoes, Fair
walue 15 derermined on the basis of ehjectve evidence ar each reporing dare,

Fair value estimation

Financial assers which are tradable i an open marker are revalued ar the marker prices prevailing on the reporing dare, The
estrmareed fair value of all ether Boangial assers and Gnancial labilines is considered oo significantly different from book valee
as there 1s an active market for the Modaraba bsted equity invesonents.

Fair value hierarchy
Fair walue hierarchy categories are described in nose 4,16 o the financial statements.

The following table presents the Company’s financial assers that are measured at fair value:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
June 30, 2025 Rupees
Financial Assets:
Short term investments (note 17) 14,287,295 - = 14,287,295
Long term investinents {note 12) - . - -
Jure 3, 2024
Financial Assets:
Shore term investmenes (note 17) 20,970,987 - - 20,970,087
Laoryr terem investrments (note 12) 2284 R = - 2.284 801
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43.5

Financial instruments by categorics

25

Cash and bank halances

Short term invesuments

Advances, deposits and other receivables
Muralraha finances - secured

Short term musharakah finances (secured -

considered good)
Diminishing musharakah financing
[jarah rental receivables - secured
Murabaha finances
Long term deposits

2024

Cash and bank balanecs

Shart term invesmmenis

Addvances, depesits and other teeeivalles

Mursbaha finances - seeured

Short terim musharaksh finances secured -
comsidered g

Dimunishing musharakah fimancng

ljarzh vental receivables - secured

Murabaha finances

Lung term deposies

Long term investments

Financial liabilit s

lease liahilivies against riphe of use assets
Unclarmwed profir diserlaions

Creditors, aceeued amd other liabilities
Charity pavable

Orperational risks

Mote

14
17
18
14

16
10
15

11
12

At fair valoe
through OCT Assets at fair
[equity value through
insteuments || Amortized cost)| profit or loss Total
designated {Mandatorly
upon inital Measured)
recognition)
Rupees
- 9, (Wi6, 363 - 0,066,363
i p 14,287,295 14,257,295
. 10,291,497 . 10,291,497
. 25,350,000 . 25,350,000
- 10,178,689 - 10,178,689
. 218,355,127 = 218,355,127
= 3,387,715 = 3,387,715
g 47,438,985 5 47,438,985
g 294,662 < 204,662
. 324,393,038 14,287 295 338,680,333
1030400 . 10,384,061
. BT HET 20,570 URT
11,365,244 11,365 248
- 25 40, DK 25,400,000
= 13,395,756 13395736
- 174,665,190 174665150
- 3,7H4 425 3,788,925
- 4T RITTH 47817721
- 204,662 204 662
2,284 801 - 2 264 501
2754 801 257,111,563 20,070,487 310,367,361
2025 2024
Maote Bupegs e
il Tib 000, D8E 742005
i 13,647,058 12828,151
24 4,328,475 10,266 832
25 1is, 608 264 552
33,134,259 51,405,560

Cperational risk is the ask of dircet or indireer boss atising from 2 wide variery of canses assochared with the processes, technology
and nfrastrocoore wppnrri.n",l_: the Modaraba's upcratiuﬂa gither internally within rhe Modaraba or exemally o the Modaraba's

service providers, and from external factors other than credsc, mackee and Squidiey visks such as those ansing from legal and

rt-Hu|a::I1jL' requipcmeTts und genetally nct-;:ph:d standarcds of investment managenent behavior, Operational rsks arise from all of

the Midaraba's sctivities.

The Modaraba's chjective i to manage operatonal sk soas to balance limiting of finandal losses and damage to its reputadon with
achieving it obpective of generatng reeams for certificate hobders,
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The primary responsibility for the development and implementatdon of controls over operational risk
rests with the Board of Directors of the Management Company. This responsibility encompasses the
conerols in the following areas:

- requirements for appropriate segreganon of duties between various funcrions, roles and

- regquirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions,

- compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;

- documentation of controls and procedures;

- requirements for the perodic assessment of operatonal risks faced, and the adequacy of controls
and procedures to address the risks identified;

- ethical and business standards; and

- risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effectve.

Capital risk management

The Modaraba's ohjectives when managing capital are o safepuard the Modaraba's ability to continue as
A going concern in order to provide return for certificate holders and benefits for other stakeholders and
to maintain healthier capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize centificate holders value,
The Modaraba manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to i, in the light of changes in
economic eondinons. There were no changes to the Modaraba's approach to capital management during
the year and the Modaraba is not subject to externally imposed eapital requirement.

The Modaraba finances its operations through equity and management of working capital with a view to
maintain an appropriate mis between various sources of finance to minimize risk,

2025 2024

- Rupees-——--—-
Total equity 348,755,947 347,737,575
Less: cash and bank balances (9,066,363) (10.384,061)
Capiral 339,689,584 337,353,014
Total liabilites 53,207,277 72957 674
Debt to eqguiry ratio 16% 2200

Further, the Modaraba's exposure to credit risk and impairment losses related to Investments, Murabaha
financing, Tjarah financing, and other receivables are disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial
SEATCITICTS,

The Modaraba's exposure related to fjatah receivables, murabaha receivables and musharakah receivables
are secured by collaterals held and the Modaraba’s portfolio of financial assets is broadly diversified and
transactions are entered into with diverse credit worthy counterparties thereby mitigating anv significant
concentration of credit nsk,
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44.1

45

46

REMUNERATION OF EXECUTIVES / KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Agpregare amounts charped in the financial statements for the year as remuoneration and benefits 1o executives [/
kev management personnel of the Modaraba are as follows:

Executives / Key
Management Personnel
2025 | 2024

———————— Rupees--eeeeeaeauaae
Managerial remuncration 6,056,184 53,970,144
Hemse rent allenwance 2,422,248 2,390,292
Medical allowance 605,508 597,564
Oither allowances 44,400 THAHIT
Retirement benefits 05,616 M H12
9,734,016 10,938,823

Number of persons 3 4

These  executves have been provided with the Modaraba manmined cars and are also ennded for
rexmbursement of fuel expenses. Chief executive officer has nil salary henefirs as disclosed in note 36,2

GENDER PAY GAP STATEMENT

Gender Pay Gap seatement under Securines and Exchange Commission of Palastan (SECP) Circular 100 of 2024
Followwing is gender pay gap caleulated for the year ended June 30, 2025

2025 2024
Rupees
Mean houarly rate - Male 23,156 22.693
Mean houtly rate - Fernale 47,733 SL66T
————— Percentage-----—
Mean Gender pay gap =106, 14% -123.27%
Median Gender pay gap -194.12% 227 59%

The disclosed ratios reflect the overall pender pay pap across the Modaraba, Compensatdon is determined
equitably fur all employees, with female members remunerated on the basis of role, experience, qualifications,
and performance, in line with SECP requirements,

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

A related party transaction is @ transfer of resources, services or obligations between a reporting entity and a
relared parry, regardless of whether a price is charged,

ey management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, dirccting and
controfling the activides of the entity, directly or indirectdy, including any director {whether executive ot
otherwise) of that entey,

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entiry, Related partdes of the Modaraba include the
Madaraba Management Company [Al-Zamin Modaraba Management (Private) Limited], dircctors and key
management personnel of the Modaraba Management Company, key management personnel of the Modaraba
and their close family members, the provident fund trust and enaties with commaon directors or under common
ranagement and control.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Contribution o the provident fund s made 1n accordance wirh the services rules. Modaraba Managemene fee, it
any, is accrued in accordance with the requirements of the Modaraba Reguladons, Remuneraton of key
management personnel are maccordance with the terms of thetr emplovment. Other transactions are careried out
atagreed terms,

Amounts duc from and due w relared parties are shown under respeenve notes (o these financial starements, All
transactions are based on commercial terms and are approved by the Board of Direcwors, Ouestanding balances
at the repornng dage are unsecured and inrerest free, There have been no guaranrees provided or recerved for
any related party receivables or payables.

2025 20124
Transactions during the year Naote Rupees
Basis of

Related party Relationship MNature of transaction
Ad-Zarman Modaraba Maodaraba Management fee a7 2,086,354 2956,102
Management (Privare)  Managemem
Limnited Company

Offfice rent 1,776,000 624,006

Electric hill back-charged 312,465 129,113
Emplovees' Provident  Assoclated Contrbution for the year 1,014,385 O84,528
Fund undertaki ryr
Executives and Associared Loan given during the vear 181 200,000 =
close relatives thereof  persons Repavment of loan received  [H.] 178,000 -
Executives and Associated Gaimn on diposal 2,163,240 08 968

close relatives therenf  persons

The amounts above do not include salares and other emplovee benefits of the executives of the Modaraba
which have been disclosed in note 44,

2025 20124

Outztanding balance as at the reporting date Note  ceemeeeed Rupegs---s-amnas
Al-Zamin Modaraba Payable against management 2,686,354 114,947
Management (Privare) fec
Litmted
Iixecutives Loan receivables 181 232,000 SUHLEH
Execunves Payable o Ather lmam - 46,000 -

Vice President Finance
Execurives Payable ro Hamuda Agqeel - 620,000 620,000

Company Secrerary
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Beconciliation of reportable segments revenues, profit or loss, assets ane liabilines is as follows:

47.3

2025 2024
B e L1111 10 B
Revenues {Restated)
Tutal revenues for reportable segments (9,211,659 i), 958 554
Oither revenues 3,364,001 045727
Modaraba's revenues 72,575,660 (] 904 581
Profit
Tonal profic for reportable segments 71,001,199 71,779,780
Oither income 3,364,001 945727
Fair value loss on asset held for sale - (4,246,504
Operanng cxpenscs {47,501,65T7) (38,917 0y
Muodaraba Management Company's fee (2,686,354) (2,956,102}
Services sales tax on the Management Company's remuneration (402,953) (384,293
Waorkers' Welfare Fund (475,485) (24412
Levy, minimum tax and final mxes (4,908,653) (4,841,691}
18,390,098 20,854,519
Assers
Toal assets for reportable sepments 559,153,481 371,257 86
Corporate assers unallocated:
Advances, prepayments and other receivables 1,650,500 2881517
Incomie tax refundable 5,280,459 3,997 069
Dicferred taxation - net 1,416,970 1,639,122
Long rerm deposits 294,662 294662
ljarah assers 25,100,789 25,897,136
Cash and bank balances 9,066,363 10 304,001
42,809,743 45093 567
Total assets as per the balance sheet 401,963,224 414,351 428
Liabilities
Toral liabilitics for reportable segments 20,073,018 30170 388
Corporate hahilines unallocated:
Lnclaimed profic distributions 13,697,088 12,828,131
Creditors, sccrued and other liabilites 9,328,475 10,206,832
Chartty payahle 108,608 269,532
Lease liahilites agamst nghr of use assers 10,000,088 7942065
Trrtal Habilities as per the balance sheet 53,207,277 TOAB5.948

Certain liahilities, assers, other income and other operating charges of the Modaraba cannot be allocared o a
specific sepment. Accordingly, these amounts have been classified as unallocared.

There are no differences berween the measurements of the reportable segments’ profits or losses, assers and

liabilittes with the Modaraba's profies or losses, assets and habilities.

There are no changes from proor years in the measurement methods used o determine reported scgment

pre sﬁr oar Ix 155,

There are no asvmmerrical allocatons o reportable segments,

All non-current assets of the Modaraba are loeared in Pakistan as at the reporting dare.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024
48 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES -——- No of employces -—-—-
Number of emplovees as at June 30, 16 ih
.-"wr_"ra.gt number of t_'mP]u:.'m:h durjhg the year 16 16
2025 2024
49 PROVIDENT FUND Audited Audired
Stre of the fund (in rapees) 0,705,492 0003 025
Percentage of invesiments made 77.28% #3.31%
Fair value of investments {in rapees) T 500, (00 TS0 (HI0
Cost of investments made (in rupees) 7, S0, O 7 0L 000

49.1  bBreak-up of investment in terms of amount and percenrage of the size of the provident fund are as follows:

2025 2024
Investment Investment lavestment Investment
Rupees as a % of size Rupees as a % of size
of funds of funds
Investment in Term Deposits 7,500,000 77.28%, 7500000 33.31%
7,500,000 S0

9.2 Investments out of the funds of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218

of the Companies Ac, 2017 and the rules formulared for this purpose,

50 Specific Disclosures for Sharia Compliant Companies
i) Balunce as at ]une 3, 2025 MNote 225 2024
e Rupees-———————
abiliii

Lease labilities against right of aue assets 7,269,660 G, 142,142
Nagets
Lasng rermmn v esTnens Shariah coomplizne 12 - et E R
Short rerm mvestmertis Shnariab r_'l.'.hn1.|:|'i.1.n|: 17 14,,2-117,29'5 200,970,987
Cash arud bank balanecs Shariah comphiane 1m D050, 505 10,384,061

ily Transactions for the year ended June 30, 2025
Incrime from ijarah - net Shariah complizor 3 TA0, 615 B37i6,7I0
I*rafit on murababa finances Shariah conyphane 3 3,584,521 4,255 Bl
Preefie om muosharakah finances Shariah cormpliane 32 Sib, 645,097 45219 4841
Dividend immcoeme on :quir-.' Mvestmencs Sharizlh |::|":I'I.'I.P|'iﬂ.l'l L a3 T (RO il a7
Cradn / floss) on sabe of short term lnvestments Shariah conplinne 4,564,535 (5,197,370
et inceime Bhardah complane 4 5,272 204 308 924
Source and detalled breakup of other lncome:
Crain an d'rspr:-sg[ uFii-rlmh nases Shariah rr:-|1|.|1|,i.tn|: f.l.5.1 1,908,293 GF2, 205
Cran an disposal of awned fxed assets Shariah comphant 2,150, 4010 418 P0H
Precrimr o elepissit and saving aceounts with banks Bhariaky comaplian ATETTY 526,758
Alzcellanenus Income Shriaky r.'.l.'.-rnpl'istnr a1 834,762 |, 7200 50
Expense on ijarah asscis:
Unwanding of lease halulines Shaciab comphanc 30 (2,678,014) (T56,.495)

iii_} Mames of the E{-mpﬂ.ny"n ahariah crrm.plisl.nt fimancial institations Amngcnwnl

1. Mesean Bank Limited
2. Fizar Habib Modaraba
3, LA Moclaraba

v} Takaful OpEratnrs:
Adanmijer losurance Company Lomired
TGT Greneral Insutance Limited
Sd:'ruri.r}' Creneral Insarance {:nml:h.l.n_l.- I amvited
Jubilew General Insurinee Cumpany Limited
Preemics Insurancs Limdted
TPL [recr Insurance Limied

HIELC d.EFIE'IF!I:
lavah Asscts
Ijarah Asscts

Window Takaful
Window Talkafil
Window Takaful
Window Fakaful
Woinedone Fakaful
Window Takatul
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

31 SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Subsequent to repocting date, Mr. Sohail Asim ha: become 2 substantial certificate holder with 2 comulatire holding of
17.96% on Augost 29, 2025,

52 CORRBRESPONDING FIGURES

Corresponding fisure: have been rearranged and reclassified, where necessary, for purposes of comparson and
better presentation. No sipnificant rearransements or reclassifications have been made in these financial statements
during the current vear, except as disclozed in Note 5.

53 GENERAL
The fipures have been rounded off to the nearest rupees unless othervwize stated.
54 AUTHORIZATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financizl statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Management Company in its
meeting held on 24* September, 2025

For Al-Zamin Modaraba Management (Private) Limired
{(Modaraba Management Compant)
Y

CHIEF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR CHIFEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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Pattern of Certificate Holding
As on 30 June 2025

Mumber of Certificate Holding Total Percentage
Certificate

Holders Freom - To Certificate Held
719 1 -100 30,259 0.10%
905 101 - 500 264,469 0.89%
5893 501 - 1000 516,942 1.73%
318 1001 - 5000 800,834 2.69%
79 5001 - 10000 598,231 2.01%
24 10001 - 15000 299,347 1.00%
21 15001 - 20000 375,837 1.26%
14 20001 - 25000 316412 1.06%
10 25001 - 30000 275,507 0.92%
3 30001 - 35000 98,780 0.33%
& 35001 - 40000 228,443 0.77%
1 40001 - 45000 45,000 0.15%
8 45001 - 50000 389,460 1.31%
3 50001 - 55000 155,910 0.52%
2 55001 - 60000 110,573 0.37%
2 60001 - 65000 127,000 0.43%
3 65001 - 70000 207,740 0.70%
3 70001 - ¥5000 219,040 0.74%
1 75001 - 80000 78,382 0.26%
2 85001 - 90000 176,652 0.59%
1 90001 - 95000 90,333 0.30%
1 95001 - 100000 96,705 0.32%
1 105001 - 110000 107.971 0.36%
1 115001 - 120000 118,100 0.40%
1 120001 - 125000 121,457 0.41%
1 130001 - 135000 131,060 044 %,
1 140001 - 145000 141,000 0.47%
1 160001 - 165000 164,506 0.55%
1 225001 - 230000 227,655 0.76%
1 290001 - 295000 291,200 0.98%
2 285001 - 300000 600,000 2.01%
1 310001 - 315000 310,500 1.04%
1 395001 - 400000 396,500 1.33%
1 425001 - 500000 500,000 1.68%
1 5260001 - 5265000 5,261,388 17.66%
1 158925001 - 15930000 15,927,807 53.45%
2,734 29,800,000 100%
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CATEGORIES OF CERTIFICATEHOLDERS
AS AT JUNE 2025

Categories of 'é::l:i;: Total Certificates Percentage
Certificateholders clﬂ;l’;f;f;“ Held
Associated companies, undertakings and related parties
Al-Zamin Modaraba Management (Private) Limited 1 5,261,388 17.66%
Investment Corporation of Pakistan 1 9,100 0.03%
Directors, CEO & their spouse and minor children - - -
Executives - & u
Public sector companies and Corporations - - -
Banks, Development Finance Institutions, 1" 312,040 1.05%
Non-Banking Finance Institutions, Insurance 1 400 0,00%
Companies, Modarabas and Mutual Funds 3 1,800 0.01%
Joint Stock Companies 23 167,699 0.56%
Individuals 2,686 23,961,073 80.41%
Others B 86,500 0.29%
Total 2,734 29,800,000 100.00

Certificateholders holding five percent or more certificate in the Modaraba

Faisal 1 15,927,807 53.45
Al-Zamin Modaraba Management (Pvt.) LTD. 1 5,261,388 17.66
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KARACHI
Principal Place of Business:
104-108, Kassam Court, BC-5,

Block-5, Clifton, Karachi-75600, Pakistan.

Tel: +92 (021) 3589 3369, 3587 3373

Faxc +92 (021) 3587 0408
E-mail info@trustmodaraba.com

LAHORE
320, 3rd Floor, Garden Heights,
8-Aibak Block, New Garden Town,
Lahore, Pakistan.
Tel: +92 (042) 3594 1957
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Fax: +92 (042) 3586 6513



